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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IEHMES

| am pleased to present the results of U-Home Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the "“Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2015 (the “Year” or the “Period”) to the shareholders.

RESULTS

During the Period under review, the Group recorded a
turnover of HK$9,336,000, representing a decrease of
73.4% as compared to HK$35,079,000 of the same
period last year. During the Year, profit attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to HK$1,981,000,
representing a decrease of 97.8% as compared to
HK$89,219,000 of the same period of last year.

The substantial drop in profit was mainly as a result
of the absence of an one-off gain of approximately
HK$100,069,000 from the disposal of a subsidiary and
the absence of the share of results of associates of
approximately HK$27,135,000.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015.

DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECTS

In May 2014, BRAFTEXERE AR LA (Nanjing Tuoyu
Property Management Co., Ltd.) (“Nanjing Tuoyu”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
framework agreement with U-Home Group Limited. Such
business is expected to generate revenue of not more than
HK$112,500,000 to the Company between 2015 and 2017.

On 9 April 2015, U-Home Oceania Pty Ltd, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Sale and
Purchase Agreement with Alphington Developments Pty
Ltd (“Alphington”) to acquire a piece of land in Australia
(the "Acquisition”). Alphington is a company incorporated
in Australia and is principally engaged in the business
of property development. The Group has diversified its
business into property development by establishing a
property project in Australia. The Acquisition constitutes
a very substantial acquisition of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of the relevant agreement are set out
in the section headed “Events after the reporting period”.

*  For identification only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IEHMES

Looking ahead, the Company’'s management and | will
continue our hard work, devotion and pioneering efforts, to
drive continuous development and new strategic expansion
of the Company.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my deepest
appreciation for all staff of the Group for their excellent
contribution, thank our shareholders for their trust and
acknowledge our business partners for their support.

Zhou Xuzhou
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE N WD T

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Trading Business

During the Period, turnover from the trading business was
HK$1,171,000, representing a decrease of 96.5% from the
previous year. The segment results turned from loss HK$6,957,000
in last year to a profit of HK$484,000 in current year, mainly due
to the change in sales mix for a higher profit margin in sales of

healthcare products.

R&D and Project Management

The Group has commenced joint chemical and biological
researches with an R&D institution in Hong Kong since 2007.
During the Period, the segment results turned from a profit
HK$1,735,000 in last year to a loss of HK$6,000 in current year.
The disappointing results of the operation is mainly due to the
existing R&D project is still under development. The management
is optimistic about this business, actively promotes the existing

projects and continues to identify R&D projects with potentials.

On 23 July 2012, the Group entered into a technology transfer
agreement with Yunnan Jiwa Biotech Limited, a company
incorporated in China (“YJB"),
consideration of RMB111,000,000 was payable by YJB upon

satisfaction of the pre-condition stipulated for each of the three

pursuant to which an aggregate

phases of construction, production and registration.

At phase 1, the Group shall transfer the technical documents of
the product technology to YJB within six months upon signing the
technology transfer agreement; at phase 2, the Group shall assist
YJB to construct a production plant with its ancillary facilities for
the production of the pharmaceutical bulk materials products to be
qualified by the Group and YJB within a prescribed construction
budget, and the construction of the plant is expected to be
completed in July 2014; and at phase 3, the Group shall assist
YJB to (i) commence full scale production of such pharmaceutical
bulk materials products at a designated production capacity and
ensure that the production cost of such bulk materials shall not
exceed the prescribed unit cost, and (ii) obtain the registration
certificates of such products as well as the certification of “Good
Manufacturing Practice” issued by the State Food and Drug
Administration of the PRC by no later than 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED N

According to the technology transfer agreement, invoices of
RMB40,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and RMB51,000,000 shall
be issued upon satisfaction of the pre-conditions set for phase
1, phase 2 and phase 3 respectively as mentioned above. The
above payment schedule may be extended by mutual agreement
between the parties to the technology transfer agreement, while
the maximum consideration shall be subject to adjustment(s) if
certain of the above terms and conditions cannot be fulfilled in

full.

Investment and Treasury Function

During the Period, segment results amounted to HK$704,000,
representing a decrease of 38.0% from the previous year, mainly
due to the decrease in gain from treasury products. The Group will
continue to look for opportunities to invest in treasury products

that yield higher returns under limited risk exposure.

Consultancy and Agency Business

During the Period, segment results amounted to HK$3,651,000,
representing an increase in 3.7 times from the previous year,
which was mainly derived from service income from property
consultation in Mainland China. The Group will continue to seek
opportunities for development in property sales and consultation

business in Mainland China.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
Property Development

During the year, the Group has diversified its business into
property development in Australia. An agreement to acquire a
land regarding the Acquisition was signed by U-Home Oceania Pty
Ltd (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Alphington
Developments Pty Ltd on 9 April 2015. The Acquisition constitutes
a very substantial acquisition of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Details of the relevant agreement are set out in the section

headed “Events after the reporting period”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

Property Sales and Consultancy Service

In May 2014, Nanjing Tuoyu entered into a framework agreement
with U-Home Group Limited. Such business is expected to
generate revenue of not more than HK$112,500,000 to the
Company in the three financial years ending 2015 to 2017.

The board of directors and management of the Company will
continue to explore new strategic development opportunities,
strengthen corporate governance and optimize business portfolio,

in order to enhance the corporate value of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity

As at 31 March 2015, cash and cash equivalents of the Group
totalled to approximately HK$52,208,000 (2014: approximately
HK$45,011,000), of which approximately 93.7% are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, 5.6% in RMB, 0.6% in US dollars, and 0.1%

in MOP. The increase in cash and cash equivalents are mainly due

to the reduction of pledged bank deposits.

As at 31 March 2015,
facilities of approximately HK$100,000,000 (2014: approximately
HK$100,000,000) of which approximately HK$100,000,000 was
utilised (2014: approximately HK$99,992,000).
HK$100,000,000 in short term bank loans.

the Group had aggregate banking

This comprised of

Interest rate risk

The Group's bank borrowings was mainly denominated in HK
dollar in order to minimize currency risk. As at 31 March 2015,
the gearing ratio was approximately 47.9% (2014: approximately
48.2%), calculated based on the Group's total bank borrowings
of approximately HK$100,000,000 (2014:
HK$99,992,000) over the Group's total assets of approximately
HK$208,909,000 (2014: approximately HK$207,420,000).

approximately
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE N WD T

Credit risk

The Group has a pragmatic approach towards credit risk
management. New customers are usually not allowed to purchase
on credit and the payment conduct of clients are monitored both
to facilitate the determination of credit limit as well as a control
over whether new sale deliveries should be made. The Group's
sale staff and marketing agents pay regular visits to customers to
promote the Group's products and at the same time would update
information on the clients’ credit worthiness. The remuneration of
sales staff and marketing agents are structured so that there is
goal congruence in maintaining a robust credit risk management

system.

Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2015, the Company had no outstanding capital
commitment (2014: Nil) and no capital commitment (2014
Nil).

Charge on Group assets

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had bank loans amounting
to HK$100,000,000 (2014: HK$99,992,000) were secured
by the Group's pledged bank deposits amounting to
HK$100,000,000 (2014: HK$106,214,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, there were no guarantees given to
any banks or financial institutions by the Group (2014: Nil).

The Group was not liable to any material legal proceedings
of which provision for contingent liabilities was required.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The directors are pleased in presenting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 20(a) to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
and the state of the Company’'s and the Group's affairs
as at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 38 to 143.

The directors does not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders of the Company,
before dividends, of approximately HK$1,981,000 (2014:
approximately HK$89,219,000) have been transferred to
reserves. Details of the movements in the reserves of
the Company and the Group during the year are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The movements of property, plant and equipment of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

EMPLOYMENT REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had approximately 39
employees. The Group’s remuneration policies are in line
with prevailing market practice and formulated on the
basis of the performance and experience of individual
employees. Apart from basic salaries, other staff benefits
included provident funds and medical schemes.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors

Zhou Xuzhou
Liu Lailin
Zhou Wen Chuan

Non-Executive Director

Chen Xuejun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Gao Guanjiang
Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis

Pursuant to the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, each
director is required to retire by rotation once every three
years and that one-third (or the number nearest to one-
third but not less than one-third) of the directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting of
the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Mr. Chen
Xuejun and Mr. Liu Lailin will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan, and Mr. Liu Lailin
have entered into service contracts with the Company
respectively for an initial period of three years commencing
from 30 August 2013. Such agreements are determinable
by either party serving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Mr. Chen Xuejun, has been appointed as a non-executive
director since 30 August 2013. Such agreement is
determinable by either party serving not less than two
months’ notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Gao Guanjiang, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis have been appointed as an
independent non-executive director since 30 August 2013.
Such agreements are determinable by either party serving
not less than two months’ notice in writing to the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions”, no contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who
held office as at 31 March 2015 had the following
interests in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries
and other associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")) at that date as
recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”):
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Corporate Total number % of total
Name of Director Capacity interests of Shares held issued Shares
HERTRE
BEEpR 5% NE R BFEZRGOEY HYEIE
Zhou Xuzhou Interest in controlled 950,256,000 950,256,000 57.94%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 1)
JEE M ZEEAE 2w (B 1)
(B 1)
Chen Xuejun Beneficial owner 117,000,000 117,000,000 7.14%
REE
Note: Kiat
1. These Shares are held by U-Home Group International 1. #% % % 17 B U-Home Group International

Limited and U-Home Group Investment Limited.

Limited 2 U-Home Group Investment
Limited 75 °

—T-EZ-FEFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme which was adopted on 24
September 2003 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorized, at their discretion, to invite employees
of the Group, including directors of any company in the
Group, and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who have
provided services to any company in the Group to take up
options to subscribe for Shares. The Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years and
had been ended on 23 September 2013. The Company has
not adopted new share option scheme.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2015, no share option was
outstanding. No share options were granted or exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2015. During the year
ended 31 March 2014, no share options were granted
and all outstanding share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme were exercised.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had been notified by
the following person (other than the directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 March 2015 which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BRI

BREFIAR _ZFEZT=FNLA_THBK
MBI ARARESFERERNBAZAS
EREE(BREAKEETEMNRARZES)
VAR 73 A S5 [ B T AR ] 2 AR AR 765 2 (£ 1]
HER BEEIXEREABREARER
- BERESEZARRTFE R=_F
—ZFAAZT=HER - AR AL ERB
AR -

RZE—NMEFR_ZE—RF=A=+—8"
MEERERETE REBEE-T—RHF=
A=T—BIHE #$EEHKITEER
e RBE-ZTE—NF=ZA=+—HLHF
B ERLERE - MBEERESER
2z RERITERERESEEITE -

FERREHEMATRARS REEH
R zEERER
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Interests in issued Shares SRITRE 2ERE
Total Percentage of
Name of substantial interests total issued
Shareholders Capacity (Note 1) Shares
EE BT
ERaE RIDEZ
FERREE £ (Hist1) BOl
U-Home Group International Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 617,154,000(L) 37.63
U-Home Group International Limited (#/##2) EnBEAA 617,154,000(S) 37.63
U-Home Group Investment Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 333,102,000(L) 20.31
U-Home Group Investment Limited (#/:%3) EZHEBAA 333,102,000(S) 20.31
Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited Interest in controlled corporation 333,102,000(L) 20.31
FEEEEXARAR REHER ES 333,102,000(S) 20.31
CHFERMEREERAA Interest in controlled corporation 333,102,000(L) 20.31
(Anhui Yuhua Real Estate Development REHER R 333,102,000(S) 20.31

Company Limited*) (Note 3)
THFERMEREBERAR(MH3)

Yee Sheng Enterprises Company Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 333,102,000(L) 20.31
FHEXBRAR(HH3) REHER ES 333,102,000(S) 20.31
Kambert Enterprises Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 333,102,000(L) 20.31
Kambert Enterprises Limited (47:£3) REHEE Es 333,102,000(S) 20.31
U-Home Property (Group) Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 333,102,000(L) 20.31
U-Home Property (Group) Limited (#7:#3) REHEE Es 333,102,000(S) 20.31
Shunda Investment Limited (Notes 2 and 3) Interest in controlled corporation 950,256,000(L) 57.94
Shunda Investment Limited (#7i22%3) REHER ER 950,256,000(S) 57.94
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou (Note 2 and 3) Interest in controlled corporation 950,256,000(L) 57.94
BN EE(HE2k3) REHER ER 950,256,000(S) 57.94
Mr. Chen Xuejun (Note 4) Beneficial owner 117,000,000(L) 7.14
REBLE(Hit4) ERHAA 117,000,000(S) 7.14

* for identification purpose only

* EHER

—TEZ-FEFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
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Notes:

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the
Shares whereas the letter “S” denotes the person’s short
position in the Shares.

U-Home Group International Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Shunda Investment Limited which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

U-Home Group Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited. Yuhua
Enterprises Company Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Anhui Yuhua Real Estate Development Company
Limited*. Anhui Yuhua Real Estate Development Company
Limited* is wholly and beneficially owned by Yee Sheng
Enterprises Company Limited. Yee Sheng Enterprises
Company Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by
Kambert Enterprises Limited. Kambert Enterprises Limited is
wholly and beneficially owned by U-Home Property (Group)
Limited. U-Home Property (Group) Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Shunda Investment Limited, which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

These shares were held by Mr. Chen Xuejun, an non-
executive director of the Company.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Wizt :

[LIFHEZALTREOFZER - MIS]FiE
ZALTRBDFZER -

U-Home Group International Limited
Shunda Investment Limited &2 & M E#H

- RATGEEN AL ERE SR -

U-Home Group Investment Limitedf F
ERBEXEBERAFAZEREHEE - F
ERABXARANBAZRTFERMER
BERAAZERE=ESR - “RFEREM
EREERAFBTFHEXERAGLA
RE=WR - THEZXFR2AE A Kambert
Enterprises Limited® & & B o5 ¥ A& °
Kambert Enterprises Limited B8 U-Home
Property (Group) Limited 28 M EHHA -
U-Home Property (Group) Limited g /& EM
SR EREZEMA Z Shunda Investment
Limited 2 E R ERHEH °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 33
to the financial statements also fell under the definition
of “connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, details of which are set out below. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements, where
applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions
Sale and Consultancy Service Framework Agreement

On 19 May 2014, Nanjing Tuoyu Property Management
Limited (“Nanjing Tuoyu” a 100% owned subsidiary of the
Company) and U-Home Group Limited (“U-Home Group”, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, an executive
director and controlling shareholder of the Company) had
entered into a framework agreement.

U-Home Group Limited is a company incorporated in the
PRC and a wholly owned subsidiary of Mr. Zhou Xuzhou,
an executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company. U-Home Group Limited is principally engaged in
property investment and development.

The annual cap amount for the transactions entered
into between Nanjing Tuoyu and U-Home Group will not
exceed RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$25,000,000), RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$37,500,000) and RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$50,000,000) for the three
years ending 31 March 2017, respectively.

BERXS
MBRRMESBAERBEZETHEALR
SHMAEa LHRAEWARIHERS IZE
F HEFRERNTX - ARAZETLETAR
A 1AAB Z RBERE (ER)

KERERS
HERBRIRBERL H:#

R-ZZF-—WEFRAA+IA ARBTEXRE
BERAR([ERAT] ARRZE2ENE
REDEFEEBARAR(TEEE] &
ARAATEERERERABMEERE
A 2 AB) RIS AER W% -

FTEEBARARAS—RANFEEMKLZ
DR WRARBRTEEFERERAER
MEEZERA AR - FTEEBEARAA
TEREMERENME -

EHREETE—tHF=-A=+—H1t=
BFEE MRBFEAFEEEMIUIRS
CEESESAIBTERBBLERARE
20,000,000 7T (#2535 74 49 25,000,000 7T ) »
A R 30,000,000 7t (48 & 7 937,500,000
% L) & A R %40,000,000 701 F R 4
50,000,000 L) °
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company who have confirmed that
the transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

(b)  on normal commercial terms; or, if there is
no available comparison, on terms that are no
less favorable than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

() in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing the transactions on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions as
set out above. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year.
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FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group acquired furniture, fixtures and
equipment for approximately HK$52,000, and the Group
did not acquire property. Details of these acquisitions and
other movements in fixed assets are set out in note 18 to
the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Company and the Group
as at 31 March 2015 are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial year is as
follows:

BE&EE
FR - RNEBEPA# 52,0008 T WEXRM - %
ELRE MAEBETEKREDE ZZK
BrETEEZEMESH FBEIARTBRE
EREE

RITERK

ARARRAEER _T-—HF=A=+—H
ZIRITERFBEN M RMARMTE26 -

FTERFRHEER

RAFREERN ERETEEFRERESD
PIEEARE ZHERRBZERMT

Percentage of the Group’s total

HEREE
Sales Purchase
HEET AL BIREE DL
The largest customer BREP 37%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFART 100%
The largest supplier AEER 20%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHER AR 100%

Other than as disclosed at note 33 to the financial
statement, at no time during the year have the directors,
their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers and suppliers.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 144 of the annual report.

BB TE MR M EIBAMMEES - RAFEA
EHE MEARRES  REZBHEAL
SEMBEESAAREERNRBRAL% AL
BERRZEFTEEF RHEH T EBEME

E_o

TFEUBHRE

AEERBERETRFEE ZEEUNREE
HEERBHNFRFE 1448 -
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a
defined contribution retirement scheme organized by
the PRC municipal government for its PRC employees.
Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note
3.14 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect
of the shares of the Company under the Company'’s
Bye-Laws, or the law of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors of
the Company, the percentage of the Shares which are in
the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the total number
of issued Shares.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO
Limited as auditor of the Company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2015 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be
held at 11:00 a.m. on 23 September 2015 (Wednesday)
at Room 4 & 5, United Conference Centre, 10/F, United
Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong and a notice
of annual general meeting will be published and dispatched
in due course.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Zhou Wen Chuan
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance
practices are crucial to the effective management of the
Group. The Company is committed to the transparency,
accountability and independence highlighted by the
principles of the Code Provisions in accordance with the
“Code on Corporate Governance Practices” and the revised
version of it which takes effect from 1 April 2012 (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
to protect the rights of shareholders and stakeholders,
enhance shareholder value and ensure proper management
of corporate assets.

The Board is of the opinion that during the financial year
ended 31 March 2015, the Company had applied the CG
Code as set out in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors. On specific enquiries made, all directors
have confirmed that, for the year ended 31 March 2015,
they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and the Own Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Composition of the Board ensures a balance of
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company and to the exercising of
independent judgment.

During the Period, the Board consists of three executive
directors, one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors with a variety of
experience in management, accounting and finance; their
brief biographical particulars and their relationship among
the Board are set out on page 32 to 35 of this annual
report.
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Six board meetings were held for the year ended 31 March
2015 and the attendance was as follows:

Board of Directors

ExgRE

Executive Directors
HITEE

Zhou Xuzhou
SRR

Liu Lailin

2R ER

Zhou Wen Chuan
=9l

Non-Executive Directors
HHITEE

Chen Xuejun

BREE

Gao Guanjiang

=L

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton

E3f==gr=y
A /D,\{EDF

Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis
FER

The Company has appointed sufficient numbers of
Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance with
the Listing Rules, including those with accounting and
finance expertise. They have dedicatedly provided the
Company with professional advice with respect to the
steady operation and development of the Company. They
also exercise supervision and coordination to safeguard
interests of the company and its subsidiaries.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each Independent Non-Executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The Operation of the Board of Directors

The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development,
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies
of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance in pursuit of the
Group’'s strategic objectives. All Board members have
access to appropriate business documents and information
about the Group on a timely basis. All directors and board
committees have access to external legal counsel and
other professionals for independent advice at the Group's
expense if they require it.

Three board committees, namely, the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee, have
been established to oversee particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group’s businesses to
management of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The board had met ten times during the Period to discuss
and formulate overall strategies for the Group, review the
financial performance, as well as other significant matters
when board decisions were required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, etc.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever
necessary. The company secretary assists in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all relevant rules and
regulations are followed.
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Minutes of every Board meeting are circulated to
all directors for their perusal and comments prior to
confirmation of the minutes at the following board
meeting. The Board also ensures that it is supplied in a
timely manner with all necessary information in a form and
of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties.

Every Board member has full access to the advice
and services of the company secretary with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to
have full access to Board papers and related materials so
that they are able to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou is the Chairman of the Company and
is mainly responsible for the management of the Board.
Ms Zhou Wen Chuan is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and is delegated with the authority and is
responsible for day-to-day management of the Group’'s
business, and the implementation of the approved
strategies in achieving the overall business objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of one year
or till retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company, whichever is earlier.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a Remuneration Committee
on 1 September 2005 with written terms of reference as
disclosed on the Company's website. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending remuneration policy to the board, as well
as reviewing and making recommendations on the Group's
share option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund
and other compensation-related issues. The committee
shall consult with the Chairman on its proposals and
recommendations, and has access to professional advice if
deemed necessary.
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During the year under review, the members of
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Gao Guanjiang,
Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and Mr. Liu Lailin, Mr. Gao
Guanjiang, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton are independent
non-executive directors. Mr. Liu Lailin is executive director.
Mr. Gao Guanjiang is the chairman of the remuneration
committee.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development,
the Company recommends directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
All directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution
to the Board. A record of the training received by the
respective directors are kept and updated by the company
secretary of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Mr. Liu Lailin and Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan
being Executive Directors, Mr. Chen Xuejun being Non-
executive Director and Mr. Gao Guanjiang, Professor Chau
Chi Wai, Wilton and Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis, being
Independent Non-Executive Directors, have attended
various seminars and meetings organised by such as
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Hong
Kong Institute of Directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge so as to ensure that their contributions to the
Board. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed
to participating any suitable training to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills.
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During the Period, the Remuneration Committee had held
2 meetings. Attendance of each individual member was as
follows:

Committee Member
ZEEKE

Gao Guanjiang
=L

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
AEE

Liu Lailin

el

The emolument policies of the directors of the Company
were reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include consulting the chairman of the Board about their
remuneration proposals for other executive directors,
making recommendation to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management and the Remuneration Committee
has adopted the approach under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the code
provisions to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

Details on the emolument payable to the Directors and the

Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in notes 17
and 31 to the financial statements respectively.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
1 September 2005 with written terms of reference as
disclosed on the Company’'s website. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment, re-appointment and succession
planning for the board members. The Nomination
Committee has the responsibility to consider and access
candidates for directorships on the Board based on their
characters, qualifications and experience appropriate for
the businesses of the Group.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board at least annually, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company's corporate strategy, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board
and selecting individuals nominated for directorship
(if necessary), assessing the independence of the
independent Non-executive directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief
executive officer. In considering the nomination of new
directors, the Board will take into account the qualification,
ability, working experience, leadership and professional
ethics of the candidates, especially their experience in the
machinery industry and/or other professional areas.

During the Period, the members of Nomination Committee
are Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
and Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis, Mr. Zhou Xuzhou is
Executive Director. Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Mr. Zhou Xuzhou is the chairman of the
nomination committee.

EECZRA
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During the year, the Nomination Committee had held 2
meetings. Attendance of each individual member was as
follows:

Committee Member
ZEgRE

Zhou Xuzhou

JEVHE M

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
EERE

Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis
FER

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible
for considering the appointment of the external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the
external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions
could lead to any potential material adverse effect to the
Company. During the Period, the Group is required to pay
to the auditor, BDO Limited the following remuneration:

Nature of services

MR E

Audit services

ZBRTS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee members comprise of Mr. Lee Cheuk
Yin, Dannis, Mr. Gao Guanjiang and Mr. Chen Xuejun. Mr.
Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis, Mr. Gao Guanjiang are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Xuejun is Non-executive
Director. Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee who has appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting expertise. No member of this
committee is a member of the former or external auditors
of the Company.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The audit committee’s primary responsibilities include
overseeing the relationship with the Company's external
auditor, review of financial information of the Group, and
oversight of the Group’'s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management. The Company
has adopted a term of reference of the audit committee,
which complies with the provisions of the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the audit committee are available on
the Company’s website.

During the year, the Audit Committee had held 2 meetings.
Attendance of each individual member was as follows:

Committee Member
EZEEgHE

Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis
FER

Gao Guanjiang

BT

Chen Xuejun

PREEE

At the meetings held during the year, in performing its
duties in accordance with its terms of reference, the work
performed by the Audit Committee included:

(a) review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control system of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

(b) recommendation to the Board, for the approval by
shareholders, of the re-appointment of the external
Auditor and approval of their remuneration;

(c) determination of the nature and scope of the audit;
and

(d) review the financial statements for the relevant
periods.

ERZZEGCIZRERREERAQTIN
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RESPONSIBILITY ON FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Management provides financial information with
explanation to the Board to assist the Board in assessing
the financial position of the Company.

The board acknowledges its responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
Company’s annual and interim reports, other price sensitive
announcement and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators as
well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
the statutory requirements. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of BDO Limited, the
Company’s auditor, are stated in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 36 to 37 of the Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters and also facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors. The company
Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Mr. Shek Man Fai who is a certified public accountant (as
defined in the professional Accountants Ordinance) was
appointed Company Secretary of the Company since 26
April 2013. He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training to comply with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2015.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board had conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group which covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

MBEREZRME

G S S i S Iy 2=
BB E BRI EAR T ZHBRR -

EEeRAEBUARAZERLTHR
T EMRABECEMBRERRAMEE
M ERE  MEERBEE ZBEARR
AEBRATHBEZERBIERE B K
SGRAZHE EFSXTABEEFAEKRL
HMERARHAEEFBELZENBREAR

ARBEBMEBLEERGHMEBME
RARZHRETHNAFREIOEITALZ
B AZHBENRE -

NAME

RANERERERETENESSRME
R THhHETEEZ ABEIREXH
R RAMENEFSTIFEER - 2RES
BRI ESARMEZER KRS - ARERE
WE=SRF  FAEERER - RAR -

E-E—=—FWA-+ B AXELE
(RPEem(ERREXGAGO))E
ZEAREARRZAGIME - BE_T—1F
ZA=+—HIEFE  REEZXTPR15/0
BRORBEZESEI - LEFLEmHERE3.29
16 o

AR BE 12

ExgCRAAEEANIEZEHE 2K
ETREMATIERER BREYK 2E-
BREENEAREEBE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition sent to the company secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not
less than 100 shareholders, can submit a written request
to the company secretary of the Company stating the
resolution intended to be moved at the general meeting
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The above procedures are subject to the Company's Bye-
laws, the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable
legislation and regulation (as amended from time to
time). Shareholders who have enquiries about the above
procedures or have enquiries to put to the Board may write
to the company secretary of the Company at the principal
place of business at Unit 2906, Tower 1, Lippo Centre,
89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong or by e-mail to
ir@yuyejt.com for the attention of the company secretary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate
with the investment community, the executive directors
and senior management of the Company actively maintains
close communications with various institutional investors,
financial analysts and financial media. Investors are
welcome to share their views with the Board by sending
enquiries to ir@yuyejt.com.

IR R AR

MRV IERERE B RAFE AR RSB R R
KM BEEMRABERERRARRRRAE £
BRIVt DZ2— RIERAAXRRZA
AMEBRLEXRE  BREFSARBRRE
AIRE RBREZBREREAZEMNEER:
Mz HAMNERZZRERMMEARNET -

HARRBEBRRNNBRRERAES LHE2ER
RZBEEETIR - +DZ2— 5 &) T D
R—BRBER AARXEBRETFARAZ
NAEAMWE - JIRAKRN R RS LB &2 RZE
BHRER-OIAEBB-TFZEHR  HHHA
FR2ZREBRMBM 2 EE - IR
EBRRAG LRIEZEE -

THRBFZARAZARMEE BRE
—NN—FRENERE AR RER (G
ERT)FTR - BB WE L iRFFa BN - st
MEEFGREEH  IBRERARAZEE
EEMIBGU BB ESESEBSIRNESP
DE—FE2906E ) TARBZAAIME » 3K
ORE T E ir@yuyejt.com TRAWME °

ERRZBE

BREREHEREIMERENRER X
REIZHTEERSAEIEEEIRESKE
BEE  BEIWMA R EERREZIE
o BUMIG & & R 2K R ir@yuyejt.com
CUMEEEREEER -

—TEZ-FEFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

31



32

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEREBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, aged 59, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 August 2013 and
was appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 23
September 2013. He is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhou obtained a Master of Arts degree from the
University of Wuhan (EZXZ) in 1985. He is the founder
and chairman of the board of directors, chief executive officer
and the sole shareholder of FEEE AR A F (U-Home Group
Limited*). U-Home Group Limited is a company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC and, together with over twenty
of its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in real estate
development, hotel management, property management and
financial investment in various cities in the PRC.

Mr. Zhou, through subsidiaries wholly owned by him, has
started his real estate business since 1992. Mr. Zhou is
primarily responsible for leading the strategic planning
and business development of U-Home Group Holdings
Limited and overseeing all key aspects of the operations
of U-Home Group Holdings Limited, including financial
management and project development business. He has
over 21 years of experience in the property industry. Mr.
Zhou is the father of Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan.

Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan, aged 32, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 August 2013
and was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer on 23
September 2013.

Ms. Zhou obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 2011, and a master degree in Food Science and a
bachelor degree in Science in Food Nutrition and Health
from the University of British Columbia in 2008 and 2007
respectively. Ms. Zhou is the daughter of Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

*  For identification purpose only

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

HITES
BBMELE 595  R-T—=F/\A=+
AEZEAAARZATEERN -B—=
FANA-+=AREERFARZER ° #
AARDAREEERER -

BEER - NN\RFEREANBREXEE
T - WAFTEEEERAFZAMA EF
XF ARATERE-—BRE FEEHE
BRAR R —HERBHFBEAREMKLZA
A ERHEBR_tHEIEMBARERE
ZEBPTHEFHERSE BEEE WX
EENERIRE -

BEEBE-NMN_FREBHZEEEZM
BRAMRFSHERS - AEETEAESR
BFREEZERAR DA ZREE RS M EB
R TEBFEEEZRERARZME
T2LERE  ERMBEEREBRRE
B BRMETERBNFER - AXRLER
BN L Z R -

Bzt 325 RZE—=F\A=+
AEZRAARRRIZHTESEARN _E—=
FNAZ+=ZBEZETAEARRRZITHLER -

BAZLIR T ——FEEERNKRERETL
EERELTEMN  YTR_ZEZNFR_ZEZT
tERIRESEBTMEEREZRREE
BETBEURRMEERFHAERSETEN - F
ZEBRABMNEEZZR -

* RS



BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAERBE

Mr. Liu Lailin, aged 58, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 30 August 2013. He is the
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Liu joined & # F # & % A R 2 @ (Anhui Yuhua
Enterprises Company Ltd.*), the immediate holding
company of U-Home Group Limited, in 1994. He is
currently a director and executive vice president of U-Home
Group Limited and the chairman of J&MFE M FRE LD
&) (Chuzhou Yuda Property Development Company Ltd.*),
a subsidiary of U-Home Group Limited. Prior to joining
Anhui Yuhua Enterprises Company Ltd., Mr. Liu was the
assistant accountant of KEWMEZEAERET AR (Datang
Xiangtan Power Generation Co., Ltd.*). Mr. Liu has over
17 years of experience in real estate management. He
obtained a Diploma of Management of Industrial Enterprise
from Hunan Radio and Television University in 1986.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Xuejun, aged 51, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 30 August 2013. He
is the member of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Chen has been appointed as director of three
subsidiaries of U-Home Group Limited, namely, &/ FH
E XA AAF (Chuzhou Yuhe Property Company Ltd.*),
IEFTHREEXAR AT (Jiangsu Yutai Property Company
Ltd.*) and & Il F # & % A R 2 A (Huangshan Yuda
Property Company Ltd.*) since 2009. Mr. Chen set up %*
YT EEmIREEEBMR AT (Shenzhen Lingnan Investment
Development Company Limited*) in 2004 and was the
chairman since then. Mr. Chen has around 10 years of
experience in property development.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Guanjiang, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on
30 August 2013. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Gao graduated from the Wuhan University (& & X
&) with a Ph. D in Economics. Mr. Gao has over 20 years
of experience in commercial banking, investment banking,
business administration and securities and finance.

Professor Chau Chi Wai Wilton, aged 54, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 30 August 2013. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Professor Chau obtained a doctoral degree in business
administration, a master degree in business administration,
a bachelor degree in laws and a bachelor degree in science.
He is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants (UK). Prof. Chau currently serves
on the boards and committees of non-profit making
organisations, including Hong Kong Biotechnology
Organisation and Hong Kong Business Angel Network
Limited. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Angang Steel Company Limited (H-Share
Stock Code: 347; A-Share Stock Code: 898). He was an
independent non-executive director of Guangshen Railway
Company Limited (H-Share Stock Code: 525; A-Share Stock
Code: 601333) from 2004 to 2011. He is also a Professor
of Practice in Entrepreneurship in the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Prof. Chau has over 27 years of experience in
direct investment and venture capital.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin Dannis, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 30
August 2013. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from Texas A & M University, the USA.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Lee is currently an independent non-executive director
of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 175)
and Tiangong International Company Limited (Stock Code:
826) respectively. He was also a non-executive director
of Kam Hing International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2307) from 2009 to 2011 and an executive director of
AMCO United Holding Limited (Stock Code: 630) from
2010 to 2011. He possesses over 20 years of experience
in accounting and auditing field.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shek Man Fai, aged 40, is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Company. He joined the
Group in November 2006 and was appointed as company
secretary of the Company with effect from 26 April 2013.
He has over 20 years of experience in financial accounting.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Shek
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Accounting from the
University of Lincolnshire and Humberside and a Master
Degree in Finance from the National University of Ireland.
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|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{5 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EETHEER 11155
JKZHI2518

www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of U-Home Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of U-Home Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) set out on pages
38 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number P05057

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEZEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ—ZE—HAF=ZA=+—HIFE

2015 2014
20 g aiks
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FAET
Revenue Was 6 9,336 35,079
Cost of sales and services provided  $H&E MIRHIRFSAK & (3,854) (29,599)
Gross profit EF 5,482 5,480
Other income E MU 8 5,261 7,772
Selling expenses HERX (1) (25)
Administrative expenses THER (7,637) (10,042)
Other operating expenses Hgas (2) (9,877)
Other gains and losses H e K Esia 9 - 2,408
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s — R B ARz W 34 - 100,069
Operating profit KR 3,103 95,785
Finance costs A& AR 10 (351) (1,401)
Share of results of associates o AN E S - 27,135
Profit before income tax R FRT 18 B4 A & F 11 2,752 121,519
Income tax expense FriS i f > 12 (769) (32,302)
Profit for the year FERER 1,983 89,217
Other comprehensive income, Hit2E WKz - HIBRBIIE
after tax
ltem that may be reclassified HEgnsEHmoEsian
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation HE SN SE TS B TS sk
of financial statements of foreign ZFES WS (E518)
operations 42 (40)
Total comprehensive income FRAZHEHKEERE
for the year 2,025 89,177

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEZEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ—ZT—HAF=ZA=+—HIFE

2015 2014
TE-RF et
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FAET
Profit for the year attributable to: T 5B IHPEAL F AR F
Owners of the Company KRBHEEA 1,981 89,219
Non-controlling interests eI IR M 2 (2)
Profit for the year FRREF 1,983 89,217
Total comprehensive income T 5B IEHEME 2 E W &S
attributable to: g
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZZE DN 2,023 89,179
Non-controlling interests R 2 (2)
2,025 89,177
Earnings per share SRER 15
Basic (HK cents) AR 0.12 5.44
Diluted (HK cents) 58 (B(L) 0.12 5.44
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

wE B RS IR L R

As at 31 March 2016 R=—ZF—AF=A=+—H

2015 2014
SE-AF [Eeanks
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B KkRE 18 96 64
Investment property B 19 33,000 33,000
Intangible assets EREE 21 1,392 —
Deposits bigcia 24 8,861 8,883
43,349 41,947
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 161 387
Accounts receivable FEUER =X 23 4,659 9,594
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BRIEREM
receivables FEMFRIE 24 8,532 3,363
Tax recoverable AU E IR - 904
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITHER 25 100,000 106,214
Cash and cash equivalents HehIReFEY 25 52,208 45,011
165,560 165,473
Current liabilities REEE
Bank borrowings RITER 26 100,000 99,992
Accounts payable FETBR IR 27 — 8,506
Accrued expenses and other payables [Eft & F & £ i FE {5178 10,595 3,129
Tax payables FEfSHLIR 1,075 362
111,670 111,989
Net current assets MENEEFE 53,890 53,484
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRABAERS 97,239 95,431
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIBEE 28 — 217
Net assets BEEFE 97,239 95,214

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

E B RS AR L R

As at 31 March 2015 R=ZT—HAF=A=+—H

2015 2014
TE-RF et
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FEx FAET
EQUITY Em

Share capital f& A 29 16,400 16,400
Reserves & 30 80,845 78,822

Equity attributable to owners KABEE AEEER
of the Company 97,245 95,222
Non-controlling interests IEERER (6) (8)
Total equity R 97,239 95,214

On behalf of the Board
REEFE

Zhou Xuzhou
AEM
Director

EF

Zhou Wen Chuan

A3l
Director

EF
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B ISR 2R

As at 31 March 2016 R=—ZF—AF=A=+—H

2015 2014
— T ik
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZKE 20(a) 82,388 82,380
Deposits b e ia 24 8,861 8,883
91,249 91,263
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E 20(b) 62,194 61,636
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENFIE
receivables R E b i W SR8 24 4,257 —
Tax recoverable AR B I8 - 31
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 25 2,382 1,025
68,833 62,692
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NG E ] 20(b) 104,912 104,256
Accrued expenses and other payables [Ext%E A K& H b B~ 318 5,445 1,600
110,357 105,856
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (41,524) (43,164)
Net assets BEEZFE 49,725 48,099
EQUITY R
Share capital f& A 29 16,400 16,400
Reserves G 30 33,325 31,699
Total equity R 49,725 48,099

On behalf of the Board
REEFE

Zhou Xuzhou
AEM
Director

EZE

Zhou Wen Chuan

A3
Director

EZE

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REEITRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ—Z—FHF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-h5 [y
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
Cash flows from operating RETHZHERE
activities
Profit before income tax FR FT1S B A& 2,752 121,519
Adjustments for: FHEEE -
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 886 —
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BERRETE
equipment 20 93
Fair value gain on derivative TNHEEEHERZ
financial instruments PTEMBIAZ
not qualify as hedges, net NEEWE - FEE — (644)
Fair value loss on treasury products  IRATV(EE Az
at fair value through profit or loss B EmZ
NTERBE — 2,697
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—fHfRBAR 2
Was 34 — (100,069)
Interest income A BUA (251) (1,000)
Interest expense AL 351 1,041
Share of results of associates i) NI — (27,135)
Waiver of amount due associates MEENEE AR R
and a former subsidiary —RERIB AREZ
IR — (5,127)
Operating profit/(loss) before EEESEBHA
working capital changes LR (BE) 3,758 (8,625)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERD(Em) 226 (387)
Decrease/(Increase) in accounts FEUBR R A (35 00)
receivable 4,947 (1,312)
Increase in deposits, prepayments e BRNRER
and other receivables A Y SR IE S AN (5,147) (1,612)
Decrease in amounts due from FE B & R R FRIE
associates, net W FEE — 84,566
(Decrease)/Increase in accounts FERHIRFRCRA) /1 A0
payable (8,506) 779
Increase in accrued expenses and FERTE R R H A ER
other payables SR N 7,438 853
Net cash generated from REELECZRESFE
operations 2,716 74,262
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net EREBNERH - FE 685 (82)
Taxation outside Hong Kong paid B EBRINIE (57) (2,585)
Net cash generated from operating K& FZBEELCRERE
activities 3,344 71,595
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEEITRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &% —Z—

S il = S

2015 2014
—E—FHE — g4
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat FHT TET
Cash flows from investing activities REFEZEHERE
Payments for purchase of property, BEYE  HEK
plant and equipment BEIRRERETE (52) (68)
Payments for purchase of intangible B & EREEN K
asset (2,278) =
Proceeds received from disposals of HEME - HE &
property, plant and equipment R PTISRIEME
W — 284
Proceeds for disposal of an HE—IHEEYHE
investment property FrS sk 18 — 22,000
Net cash inflow on disposal of a HE—RIMBATY
subsidiary REMAFEE 34 — 36,955
Proceeds received from disposal HERAFERA
of treasury products at fair value B 2 WSE R
through profit or loss 2 BB RIR — 98,191
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank BIERBITEZRD
deposits (3% hn) 6,214 (29,562)
Interest received 2R 251 1,000
Settlement of derivative financial BETEVHEE
assets - 181
Net cash generated from investing RETEELEZRESFHE
activities 4,135 128,981
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEZB<HERE
Proceeds from issuance of share BT AN 2 FT{S SRR
capital — 5,100
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERZ TSR 166,000 99,992
Repayments of bank borrowings f’%fi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁv\ (165,992) (178,545)
Interest paid BFE (323) (1,041)
Dividends paid to owners of the E1‘J‘$ AR ARE
Company NG 14 — (175,090)
Net cash used in financing METEFAZRSFE
activities (315) (249,584)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RE&RBELZEY
cash equivalents i, Gid) FE 7,164 (49,008)
Translation differences ME = 33 (39)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzRe kB eEEY
beginning of the year 45,011 94,058
Cash and cash equivalents at end HFRZHRERBELEEY
of the year 25 52,208 45,011

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 = —_Z—RAF=A=+—HLFE

Non-
controling Totel
Equity attibutable to owners of the Company intrests quity
HOTREAR GRS HiREn  EagE
Asset
Share  Contibuted ~~ Statutory revaluation Share~ Proposed Aee-
Share  premium® sumlus® resenve®  Tranlation  resenve? option final - umulated
cptal o300 o300 hoe 0] veseve® o300 reserve®  dividends®  losses* Total
g
T T [
B i) ) e 4S8R (Eap) e AERS RER &t
RSO0 HKSom HKSO00  HCSOm RSO0 HKSOm  AKSDO0 HKSOM  AKSODD  HKSOm  AKSODD  HKSO
o o o T flm T Th flm th th fn T
At 1 April 2014 H-8-TERA-F 140 66009 1081 - w0 - - e % B %
Proftfrthe year Emg - - - = = = = -1 198 ! 198
Othercompreensie ncome~~ S 2
Echengegan on rensiefon - BEDTERAESRL
offrencel statements of Eig
forein operafions - - - - ] - - - - £ - 4
Tod comprehensiveincome for~~ ERSNELE
e year - - - - ] - - - 1981 208 1 200
Tinsfrof PRC stttoy resene. B8 = - - 119 - - - - (149 - - -
At 31 March 205 3-8
Zj=1-A 16400 66909 101 1 ! 03 - - (965 9 (—PE

* the total of these equity accounts as at reporting date  * RBEAZZERREEABEGREUEBERER
KA 2[4

represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of

financial position
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2015 = —Z—RAF=A=1+—HLFE

Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
KLREEARGRR FERRE  BRAE
Retained
Asset profits/
Share  Contributed revaluation Share  Proposed (Acc-
Share premium *  surplus * Translation  reserve* option final  umulated
capital (note 30l (note 30))  reserve* (note 30(i))  reserve* dividends* loss) Total
EEEf
Riag:  EARK fife? FhE it

Be (s () BERRE (ES) BE RERST  REE: it
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSTO00  HKS'000
7T i i T 7T 71 7T 7ET 741 TEL 7T

At 1 April 2013 I5-cE
BA-H 16,250 59,932 2,000 - 22,353 2071 - H133 615,943 [6) 615,937

Issue of shares upon filEhERE

exercise of share &

options 150 4,90 - - - - - - 5,100 - 5,100
Exercise of share option~~ 17(EEIR#E - 2001 = - - = = = = =
Special interim dividends RIS

fnote 14) (hitn) - - - - - - — (615,000 (615,000) - (615000
Transaction with owners ~ EEBALS 150 6,977 - = = (2,027) — (615,000 (609,900) — (609,900
Profit for the year Eigh - - - - - - - 09 899 2 8927
Other comprehensive B2 EhE

income
Exchange loss on AENEER

translaton of financial B

statements of foreign LERFE

operations - - = (40) - = = - (40) = (40)
Total comprehensive EnemhRes

income for the year - - - (40) - - - 89,219 89,179 2) 89,177
Realisation of contribution &~ B

suplus upon disposal Al E

of a subsidiary REAZH - - (909) - - - - 909 = = =
At 31 March 2014 H=3-ME=f

=1-H 16,400 66,909 1,091 (40) 22,353 - - (1149 95,222 8) 95,214

e the total of these equity accounts as at reporting date  * RBEAZZERRRABREREVHEMRR
represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of KR Z[ #%E ]
financial position

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 HiZ —ZE—HAF=A=1+—HILFE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

U-Home Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
and its principal place of business is Unit 29086,
Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong. The Company's shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group”.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
include trading of pharmaceutical and health care
products, research and development of chemical and
biological products, investment and treasury function
and consultancy and agency business.

The directors consider the immediate holding
company is U-Home Group International Limited and
the ultimate parent is Shunda Investment Limited,
both companies are incorporated in British Virgin
Islands (“BVI") with limited liability.

The financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 29 June 2015.

—REHR
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BREFMKIAEBER AT - EaEfl
i = @ 2 i 3k B Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda ' MHA X Z L EME A AEHE
CEESIRNEFRLE —FE2906E °
RATRZBOEBAMEZIMERA
Al (B2 Fr]) ki e

ARAREMBARSEAIAEE] -

ARBERRERELER - HHTB AR
ZIBXBEREEBENBRREEE
o MERABCEREYER ®KE
N ST A5 DA R e SR IR 75

EETRAEERERAR AU-Home
Group International Limited M &4 &}
A7\ Shunda Investment Limited °
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RAE] e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

2.

FEEEZERERAA

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements on pages 38 to 143
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised in note 3. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if
any, are disclosed in note 4.

[t should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’'s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.

U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for
investment property which is measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set
out in note 3.5.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March
each year. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in profit or loss
from the effective dates of acquisition or up to
the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by
other members of the Group.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 2 —ZE—HRF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #%& —Z&—

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and

accounted for as equity transactions.

the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interests’
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 2 —ZE—HRF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured at historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the
Group's presentation currency, have been
converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into HK$ at the closing rates at
the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised in
the translation reserve relating to that operation
up to the date of disposal are reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using straight-line method, as
follows:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

The assets’ estimated residual values,
depreciation methods and estimated useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

Gain or loss on disposal is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value
with any change therein recognised in profit or
loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on straight-line method
over their useful live as follows. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
The amortisation expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Computer system 3 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Intangible assets (Continued)
Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually by comparing
their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—-Z—

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when,
and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade date. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss,

directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any

identified impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

FREBZRERAR

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

° granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor's financial
difficulty;

o it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

° significant changes in the

technological, market, economic

or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include bank
borrowings, accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs (see note 3.15).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

FEEEZERERAA

Financial liabilities (Continued)

A financial liability is derecognised
when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Bank borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Bank borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date.

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other payables

These are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 HiZ —ZE—HAF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

(iv) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Share capital is determined using the
nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the
issuing of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

SiY

3.10

FREBZRERAR

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risk and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR Y

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 HiZ —ZE—HAF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use
the assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases
as lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases
are measured and presented according to
the nature of the assets. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as the rental income.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

o

FEEEZERERAA

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.12

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,

amount cannot be estimated reliably,

unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales
of goods and the use by others of the Group's
assets vyielding interest and rental income, net
of rebates and discounts. A single arrangement
is separated into its identifiable components if
each component has stand-alone value to the
customer and the fair value of the component
can be measured reliably. The consideration for
the arrangement is allocated to the identifiable
components on a relative fair value basis.
Revenue is recognised for each component of
a single arrangement in accordance with the
Group's revenue recognition policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—-Z—

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

— Sales of goods, i.e. health care products,
are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risk and rewards of ownership
to the customer. This is usually taken as
the time when the goods are delivered and
the customer has accepted the goods.

— Consultancy service fee income is
recognised when the services are provided.

— Rental income is recognised on straight-
line method over the lease period of the
tenancy.

— Interest income is recognised on time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are subject to impairment testing and
are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may
not be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 2 —ZE—HRF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to
sell, and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the
asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent from those other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. CGU). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at CGU level.

An impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the other assets in the CGU, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or
value-in-use, if determinable.

Impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries
which operate in the PRC are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as employees render services
during the year. The Group's obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 2 —ZE—HRF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

FREBZRERAR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

SAlIE

Employee benefits (Continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are recognised
until the time of leave.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which
the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Income taxes (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to
items recognised directly in equity in which case
the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations. Individually
material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. BEABHEEHME®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.18 Related parties 3.18 EAL
For the purposes of these financial statements, RUEHHEREMS - WEBUATE
a party is considered to be related to the Group S BNEBA TSR REAREE
if: R
(a) The party is a person or a close member of (a) FEUATHEMEZALTHZA

that person’s family is related to the Group T 7T R AR B A R

if that person,

(i)  has control or joint control over the () BHASEEEGEIE
Group; [) 42 ) 42

(i) has significant influence over the (il HEAEBHEERFE
Group; or 5%

(i) is a member of the key management (i) AREBENARFTHER
personnel of the Group or the RIZEEEREKE °

Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

The party is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other
entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other party is an
associate of the third party;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
or

(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or

a person identified in

is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’'s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2014

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 April
2014

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial

HKAS 32 Liabilities
Amendments to Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
HKAS 36 Non-Financial Assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR Y

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 HiZ —ZE—HAF=A=1+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2014 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements
by adding application guidance to HKAS 32 which
clarifies when an entity “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off” and when a gross
settlement mechanism is considered equivalent
to net settlement. The amendments are applied
retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not
have any offsetting arrangements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments limit the requirements to
disclose the recoverable amount of an asset or
cash generating unit to those periods in which an
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed, and
expand the disclosures where the recoverable amount
of impaired assets or cash generating units has been
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal.
The amendments are applied retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no material
impact on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Company.

2

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010 - 2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011 - 2013 Cycle'

3

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012 - 2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements®

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 27

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation®

Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements’

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers"

Note:

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions
occurring, on or after 1 July 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR Y

(For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ—ZE—hFE=A=1+—HILEE)

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements 2010 - 2012 Cycle, 2011 -
2013 Cycle and 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear.

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial
Statements

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to
encourage entities to use judgement in the application
of HKAS 1 when considering the layout and content of
their financial statements. In addition, an amendment
is made to HKAS 1 to clarify the presentation of an
entity’'s share of other comprehensive income (“OCI")
from its equity accounted interests in associates and
joint ventures. The amendment requires an entity's
share of OCI| to be split between those items that
will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and
presented in aggregate as single line items within
those two groups.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 —
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

RN E BB EREER (2)

EEMEERERZHTRRBITER
B E LRI ()

—E-EFE-F——FHH —F
——FR_EF-—=FHHR-F——F
EoE-MERAHZFENE

REESCEBRTRONERTHE TE
A5 B ATTB M 2 B2 fE HE ST A a )
HYE K °

EBEERZEIRZETE — BE
#Hxz25

EREHERE 1R IETAE BB
NRAEEREMBREZHREAR
BEBRATEGTENE 1 REERH
B o s BAR G ERIF 1A -
BAERRARRBMERARAZEDRE
ZB AR 25| AR EAEM 2R
A o RERTER R BEEEMEE KA
KRG LB EEN D RERE AR
hoY o YRZMEARNANEXRIERE
—IBREZ% -

BEEBETEAE 16 REEBEERE
P2 T — BEEUTEIZHER
BT %

FEGHERIE 165 2RI ILE AL
WaREENTAEME - BEERE
HBFENE - BESTEAF 38R
EETBI A—HA B ER M RER - BAK
S RBTLEEBENERISE - %
BRARATMEERRESR - 8P
BERNMNRAGE  KIWABRBTLEE
BB HRTERERBER -

“E-WEE-AFFH ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

77



78

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income if the objective of the
entity’s business model is both to hold and collect
the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial
assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to measure equity instruments that
are not held for trading at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at fair
value through profit or loss replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their
risk management activities in financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR Y

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 HiZ —ZE—HAF=A=1+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

RN E BB EREER (2)

EEMEERERZHTRRBITER
B E LRI ()

BEERBHEERFIN — HWBLR
(%)

FEENBRERAUNFORAEA G
ZERIEIHRIA THHABE 2R~ D
RETERTE - EEERAFEFARS
ZHBRERN - MABEEERRE
SIBzZAFEEZPSENEMEEKE
MR FRIFGELIBEBASFHEEAIE
RlEm o BIN  BEMBRE LR E IR
REBBGTERIFE 39 RR IR
BEMUBABRZIHRE

BEBUBHEERE 155 — KEHEE
F &zl

Ibk T 5 4 B e 7 — 8] B2 0 O UK e T R
R RAERNZOIRE AR R EHERK
SmARSBEHAERARRmARS T
BEP  ZeBRREMZAFBERR
BZERmERBAKEREAE - T8
B H5 R 5 ZE B 28 16 SR BRI ER 1T e an B
RiEgsl(BREFA G ERFE 185K
7@ BEESHENE I RIZESL]
KiARERE)

o
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 HiZ —ZE—HAF=A=1+—HILFE)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

(i) Fair value of investment property

As disclosed in note 19, investment property
is measured at fair value and revalued at the
end of each reporting period. The fair value
is determined with reference to valuation
conducted by Roma Appraisals Limited
(“Roma”), an independent firm of professional
valuer. Such valuation was based on various
assumptions which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from actual results.
In making the judgement, the Group considered
current price in an active market for similar
properties and used assumptions that were
mainly based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period.

5.

B E S aT &M

et RA e X2 AN - LERB
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RResHh RERR
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R-—H -RT—UBREE HEERE
BIREE A B EKERAER R 2 A5t
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I 19T IRE - REMETS
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BHfEE ATED2REHBILE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 2 —ZE—HRF=A=1+—HILFE)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment on accounts and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of
its debtors to make the required payments. These
estimates are based on ageing of its accounts
and other receivable balances, customers’ credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of its debtors deteriorates
so that the actual impairment loss will be higher
than expected, the Group will revise the basis of
making the allowance and its future results would
be affected.

(iii) Sale of technical know-how

As disclosed in note 24(b), during the year ended
31 March 2013, the Group entered into multiple-
element arrangements when they sold its intangible
assets to Yunnan Jida Biotech Limited (“YJB"),
an associate already disposed of on 23 August
2013. The consideration of total arrangements has
been allocated to the deliverables based on their
relative fair values. The allocated consideration is
recognised as revenue in accordance with note
3.12. The Group's directors exercise judgement
to determine whether the arrangements comprise
identifiable components so as to apply the
recognition criteria to the separately identifiable
components of a single transaction in order to
reflect the substance of the transaction.

(iv) Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment and amortises intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policies stated
in notes 3.4 and 3.6 respectively. The estimated
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets.
The management reassesses the estimated
useful lives at the end of the reporting period.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

6.

REVENUE

e el =)

6. Wz

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note
1. Turnover of the Group is the revenue derived from
its principal activities.

AREBEZTEXBRMEIRE - A&
BrzEXBERRAETRERZ W

2015 2014
“E-AF ek
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Trading of pharmaceutical and health B 5 %% R RIEZE &
care products 1,171 33,072
Sale of technical know-how & BT AN R - 1,000
Consultancy service fee income B R BB A 8,165 1,007
9,336 35,079

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors. The executive directors based on their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components on these reports.
The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major product and
service lines.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has
four reportable segments, the following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's
reportable segments:

(i)  Trading of pharmaceutical and health care
products — Trading of pharmaceutical and health
care products

(i)  Research and development — Research and
development of chemical and biological products

(iii)  Investment and treasury function — Investment
holding and treasury function

(iv) Consultancy and agency business — Provision
for property agency and consultancy service

7 BB E
AEERBEEHRERTRITEST ZAR
MBERBRIEEED A RRERD BE
e MITTEFREBZFREMBERE
AEBEBBD 2ERD ERRFZE
MO ZRR - ERMTATEFTZARY
BEMMBEB LD DIKBEARE ZE
REMRBREHEBETE -

HE_T—hF= ﬂ tT—HILEFE -
$EIEEMT HEE - THIBLEE
Uiz SIEIE=S 54&&"*52@.—?

(i) BEEHGRREER — EEEM
f%'fk?ﬁ:

(i) FENAE — CLBEREYEMZ
iAW A

(i) WERFBES —
BRS

BEEBR KRS

(iv) ERMEHREREE —
IR K R R AR

AR YE 3
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

— fair value gain or loss on put options

— impairment of/reversal of impairment for other
receivables

— share of profit or loss of associates accounted
for using the equity method

— finance costs incurred on corporate borrowings

— income tax

— corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude tax
recoverable. In addition, corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not allocated to a segment
and the Group’s headquarters.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities. In addition,
corporate liabilities which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment
and are not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets
and segment liabilities

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments including the reconciliations to revenue,
profit before income tax, total assets, total liabilities
and other segment information are as follows:

Trading of
pharmaceutical

and health Research and
care products development

EEERR
REER EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000

FEn

Year ended 31 March B2-%-1F

FER

DEER ()

DHlE - PWMER IHWEERD B
&

ERASBER 2ROz ERN(RIEE
Yz - BRETSBADG AN - EEEE - &
BERBENEMOMERZHEIMT

Investment Consultancy

and treasury and agency
function business Total

RER BER
g EHREER a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FAT FEr

2015 ZR=t+-BLFE
Reportable segment CEL: V6

revenue 117 - - 8,165 9,336
Reportable segment TERAPEN/

profit/(loss) (E8) 484 (6) 704 3,651 4,833
Exchange loss, net ERER 58 (1,073)
Secretary fee WEER (806)
Legal and professional HFEREXER

fees (113)
Unallocated corporate RARAAMA

income 3,480
Unallocated corporate FARREET

eXpenses (3,569)
Profit before income tax  BRFAEH AR 2,752
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. aHER@®)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets TR DHEE IBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a®\E)

Trading of

pharmaceutical Research  Investment  Consultancy
and health and  andtreasury  and agency
care products  development function business Corporate Total
RRERR RER BRk
REER  FARAR BBER  EERERE A a3t
HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
71 71 77 Tz Fiér TEn

Other information HfpER
Interest income from: HEMA -

— bank deposits — Bk - - - 1 31 3

— time deposits — Bl - - 219 - - 219
Finance costs BERA - - (31) - - (351)
Amortisation of intangiole assets ~ EF/AEES - - - (886) - (886)
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - HERRENRE

equipment (20) - - - - (20)
Additions to specified non-current  EEFEFEEEL

assets’ En 13 - 3 2078 - 2330
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets
and segment liabilities (Continued)

DEER ()

DHlE - PWMER IHWEERD B
&EE)

Trading of
pharmaceutical
and health care Research  Investmentand  Consultancy and
products  and development treasury function  agency business Total
BEERR RER BER
REER NG BB EERBER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr 77 T T FiEr
As at 31 March 2015 RZB-E§=A=1-A
Reportable segment assets AI2HAPEE 1,587 3,089 179,247 9,352 193,275
Cash and cash equivalents B2 TEEZEN 2516
Other corporate assets ApAREE 13,118
Consolidated total assets ~ HAEEAE 208,909
As at 31 March 2015 RZB-E%=A=1-A
Reportable segment TERAPER
liabilities 207 - 102,781 2,162 105,150
Tax payables JEfTHE 1,075
Accrued expense and ERBRREMENTE
other payables 5,445
Consolidated total GRERAE
liabilities 111,670
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

FREEZERARAA

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. pDEERE)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DEKE - DEHEE IBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a8E(E)
Trading of
pharmaceutical Research Investment Consultancy
and health care and and treasury and agency
products development function business Total
EEEMR RER BHR
RREEm R BBER EEREXHE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
A7 AT AT AT AT
Year ended 31 March BE-E-mF
2014 ZR=t-HL%E
Reportable segment A2 BbE
revenue 33,072 1,000 — 1,007 35,079
Reportable segment 2RI B(HE)/
(loss)/profit pegil (6,957) 1,735 1,136 978 (3,108)

Waiver of amount due
to associates and a
former subsidiary

Financial guarantee fee
income

Exchange gain, net

Share of results of
associates

Gain on disposal of a
subsidiary

Secretary fee

Legal and professional
fees

Unallocated corporate
income

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Profit before income tax

HHRABERRR
HINBARNE

HBEREUA

B - 5
EEBENARE

HE-FHEARZ
Yigs

HEER

ERREXER

APRLRARA

APRRFARX

WRATEBIAER

U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

606
2,616

27,135

100,069
(1,208)

(7,516)

3N

(2,517)

121,519
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B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. aHER@®)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DEKE - DEHEE IBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a®\E)
Trading of
pharmaceutical Reseach Investment  Consultancy
and health care and  andtreasury  and agency
products  development function business Corporate Total
EEERR & EfR
fEEm  HERA% AhRE  BEREER A7 R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT 7T 7T 7T
Other information HfpER
Interest income from: HEMA -
— bank deposits and loans to — BERRER THELT
associates 16 12 615 1 2 046
— bank deposits subject to — R (Rl
interest rate swap a7E)
contracts - - 354 - - 354
Finance costs BENR = = (1,401) = = (1,401)
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - HERRERE
equipment (93) - = = - (93)
Fair value gain on other derivative  MTASIRERZITEHETAL
financial instruments not AT{EkE  ¥E
qualifying as hedges, net - - 644 - - 644
Fair value loss on treasury products ~ RATEFABEZHEERZ
at fair value through profit orloss ~ AFEEE - - (2,697) - - (2,697)
Additions to specified noncurrent  BEFEHEEZEN’
assets’ 68 = - - - 68
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(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEERE)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DEKE - DEHEE IBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a8E(E)
Trading of
pharmaceutical Investment
and health care Research and and treasury ~ Consultancy and
products development function  agency business Total
EEEmR RER BAk
REER RERF% HBEE  ERRERR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT
As at 31 March 2014 RZZ-WEZA=1-H
Reportable segment assets ~ T2HAFEE 50,690 3,088 139,249 12,453 205,480
Tax recoverable A EHE 904
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEN 1,034
Other corporate assets EAREE 2
Consolidated total assets RREESE 207,420
As at 31 March 2014 R=2-REZA=1-H
Reportable segment liabilities  T2HASEE 10,034 - 99,992 - 110,026
Tax payables EffE 362
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEsE a7
Accrued expenses and other  [EREBREMEME
payables 1,601
Consolidated total liabilities ~ &AEEHE 112,206
# Including the Group's property, plant and equipment, # PREANEEZME  BERRE - &
intangible assets and investment property. HEEREEYE -
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(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

An analysis of the Group’'s property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets
(i.e. specified non-current assets) by geographical
locations, determined based on physical location of
the assets, is as follows:

DEER ()
i EE R

AEBREEERUEBTE ZWES D
ZOE - BEREE REVERET
BE(AEEIFRBEE) DM :

2015 2014

TE-RF EeEaitEs

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (b s 33,096 33,064
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TNBEEEE) 1,392 —
34,488 33,064

The Group’s revenue is predominantly derived from
the PRC. The geographic location of customers
is based on the location at which the goods and
services were delivered or rendered.

Information about major customers

Revenue for the current year from one (2014: three)
customers of the Group’'s trading of pharmaceutical
and health care products segment amounted to
HK$1,171,000 (2014: HK$17,152,000, HK$9,239,000
and HK$5,800,000), which represent 13% (2014:
49%, 26% and 17%) of the Group's revenue.

Revenue for the current year from four customers
of the Group’s consultancy and agency segment
amounted to HK$3,446,000, HK$2,532,000,
HK$1,115,000 and HK$1,072,000, which represent
37%, 27%, 12% and 11% of the Group's revenue
respectively. For the year ended 31 March 2014, none
of the customer individually contributed 10% or more
of the Group's consultancy and agent segment.

As at 31 March 2015, amount due from the largest
customer accounted for 45% (2014: 87%) of the
Group's total accounts receivable balances.

AEBZWSETBRETE - REMAE
WIARNERFIRHERBE 2 WE S E

2% o
FREIEFEFZEHR
AER  AEBEEERMRREMRD

Hre—%2(ZE—UF : =ZR)RFESE
ZWAE1,171,0008 7L (= —PO4F ¢
17,152,000 7T * 9,239,000/ 7T &
5,800,000 7T) * [EAEBEIWAZ 13%
“T P 49% ~ 26% K 17%) °

AEE  AEEEBAREHEREDF
ZHEEFES 2 A %3,446,000 7
7T~ 2,532,000 7T + 1,115,000 % 7T &
1,072,000 7T + 7 AME A S EIKA 2
37% *27% ~ 12% K 11% > REZE =
T—NE=ZA=+—HLFE BER
FRANEMASEEMREHEHRESF
10% A E ©

RZZE-—RF=A=+—H "  BR&EX

BE 2 RERAEEEW RS A%
Z245% (ZZ—PU4F : 87%) °
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B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hulg A
2015 2014
—E-RF — g4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income on bank deposits RITHF I FBUA 251 1,000
Rental income AU A 960 973
Waiver of amount due to associates  #A% JE (B 2= A &) M ATHT B A A
and a former subsidiary ZF0A — 5,127
Compensation from former ARREREEEEFETEM
shareholders on the shortfall of net  ##f&
asset value of the Group 4,035 —
Sundry income EMUA 15 672
5,261 7,772
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HihkEREE
2015 2014
—E-hF — g4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Exchange gain, net b 5 Was - JFEE - 4,461
Fair value loss on treasury products  IZAF{EF AEBZ 2 B HEE R
at fair value through profit or ZATEEE  F5E
loss, net — (2,697)
Fair value gain on derivative financial & LHER Z OTHE B
instruments not THEHZAFERKEZ @ 55
qualifying as hedges, net — 644
- 2,408
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ—Z—AF=A=+—HILFE)

10. FINANCE COSTS

10. A& KA

2015 2014
—E-RHE —PO4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest charges on bank borrowings ZERAFARBEEZ
wholly repayable within five years RITERFERE 351 1,401
During the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, HE_— AERER_ZT—NF=A

all finance costs were charged on bank borrowings
which contain repayments on demand clause.

11. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 11.

&R -

BRFT 15

HK$000
FET

Profit before income tax is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

Auditor’'s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
expense

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments)

Operating lease charges in respect of
premises

Exchange loss/(gain), net

Outgoings in respect of investment
property

Net rental income from investment
property

RS TR E M E MR,

(GTA) :
ZERN B & 500
ERARIT ZFERA
708
Y - WE RERETE
20
A E 886
EERNAXZ(BEEZME)
5,839
MEZKEHERY
265
PE 5. &8, (Mes ) F 5 1,073
TE Y 2 B
150
wEWE S WA FEE
(810)

=t— EI if“ ﬁﬁ*ﬁmﬂé&$ﬂﬁ)&
RITER > ZFEFRHEAREREEZ

2014

—ET—OF

HK$'000
FET

480

29,588

93

4,983

1,869
(4,461)

33

(940)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") has been provided
on the estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries
operating in PRC at 25% (2014: 25%).

FrEBiMx

FR - BEAGEHE stib st RS T
1#£16.5% (ZZF—MM%F : 16.5%) 2B &
Y24 -

CEMESHICEMSEH DERRAF
Bl4E 2 2 BB A R 2 (haT R B8 Mg
25% (ZZ—PU4E : 25% ) 2 B R{EH &
1% o

2015 2014
TE-RF ket
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET
Current tax NEAFRIE
— Hong Kong — &F
Tax for the year REEFEFHIA 181 129
Under/(Over)-provision in respect BEFERR,(FB5)
of prior years A 3 (209)
184 (80)
— PRC —
EIT for the year REFZLEMSH 802 382
Capital gain tax provided for & — R B A A
disposal of a subsidiary TER 2 2 BARFISH
(note 34) (K15£34) — 32,000
802 32,382
Deferred tax EETR IR
Current year (note 28) REEZ (it 28) (217) —
769 32,302

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FREFBEX#)

13.

BHRAXBEGHEMNZERNRHE
Z‘%\TEE :

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2015 2014
o T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax bR BT 1S AR BT 4 1) 2,752 121,519
Tax on profit before income tax, AR BT R A M I i 1 A
calculated at the rates applicable ZBETE 2 RIS AR
to profits in the tax jurisdictions A IE
concerned 765 20,138
Tax effect of non-deductible DA B S 2 B i s &
expenses 247 1,855
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue AR S 2 MG B (99) (23,008)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBIEEE BB E
recognised 463 1,430
Tax effect of temporary differences  REREREZR 2 RIEFE
not recognised (126) (31)
Utilisation of tax losses previously FREBARER ZHIAEE

not recognised (267) —
Others H A, (217) 127
& — R E ARGt A

Capital gain tax provided for disposal

of a subsidiary L BARIGER — 32,000
Under/(Over)-provision in respect of  BEFETE,/(FR5E)BE

prior years 3 (209)
Income tax expense P8R 769 32,302

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 13. X R FHEE ARMGEF

OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$1,981,000 (2014:
HK$89,219,000), a profit of HK$1,626,000 (2014:
HK$479,956,000) (note 30) has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

NRFHEEB AEGERE ®H 1,981,000
Bt (=— & — M4 : 89,219,000/ Jt )
R 3E R 1,626,000 BIT( =T —PO4F -
479,956,000 % 7T ) (Ff 52 30) B M A A
A SRR -

—E-EE-RFEFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE

96

Dividends attributable to the year

REERERE

2015 2014
“EFF [tk
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT F&r

No dividends in respect of current

ENIEEERIE T ¢S

financial year (2014: special interim (ZZT W : FRlRERE

dividends of HK$0.375 per share)

FH0.375787T)

— 615,000

On 23 May 2013, a special interim dividends
amounted to HK$615,000,000 (HK$0.375 per
share) was conditionally proposed, subject to (i) the
completion of the disposal of Jiwa Pharmaceuticals
Limited (“JPL"), (ii) the completion of disposal of an
investment property of the Group and (iii) approval by
the shareholders of the Company. These conditions
were subsequently fulfilled and as at 23 August 2013,
the special interim dividends became unconditional
and was recorded as liabilities of the Group. Such
dividend was paid on 30 August 2013.

Included in the dividend payable of HK$615,000,000,
HK$439,910,000 (note 34(i)) was settled against
the consideration receivable in connection with the
disposal of JPL.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

RZZ—=FRA=+=0" BiRE
615,000, oooi% ﬁ(ﬁ&o 375 T ) &
BiEHRE NEESEE D PEEIE
T ||)K%Z%xé?%%ﬁ%$lﬁn
B R (i) AR BB B % - A {E
FoHBEERLEEGRE  BER=ZT—=
FNAZ+=8 " HRPHRSKAE
Rt WAXEBZBBEAR - ZBRE
ER-ZE—=FNA=+HBIEM-

£ FE 1 P& 2.615,000,0007 7T & & -
439,910,000 7 7T (Fff 5 34(i)) #5 LA B B3
HEEEsE WK EEN -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ T —HAF=A=+—HIFE)

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BRAER
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per ARAREAEARLERERARE SRR
share attributable to owners of the Company are THRA T 8B E

based on the following data:

2015 2014
—E—RF il
HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET
Profit for the year attributable to RATEER ANEGEFERRT
owners of the Company 1,981 89,219
‘000 ‘000
F FhHz
Weighted average number of T E AR N RE 39 E
ordinary shares
Weighted average number of ordinary FUAGTEESRERZEF]Z
shares used in calculating basic T AR N S 21
earnings per share 1,640,000 1,639,014
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary HEETLTER
shares — Share options B — B — 434
Weighted average number of ordinary FAGTEEREERRN 2
shares used in calculating diluted T AR AN RE S
earnings per share 1,640,000 1,639,448
16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 16. EERAMAX(BEESHE)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

2015 2014
TE-RF  gEmieaguiis
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET

Salaries and wages, other allowances #& &I & « HEfb#8,

and benefits in kind REYH @ 5,148 4,112
Rentals for staff and directors ETR=EE e — 854
Contributions to defined contribution  TEZB{LERET | 2 430

plans 691 17

5,839 4,983
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE)

17. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 17. EEFHFHESHREEEMN
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=EM&

Salaries,

housing,

other Contributions

allowances to defined

and benefits  contribution

in kind plans

e BB

HitZRR EREMAR
ik BYRE HE AT A5t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET FAT FAET

For the year ended 31 BE-Z-1f%

March 2015 ZAZT-HLEEE
Executive directors HTES
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan B &£

(note (iii)) (Hiaz(iir) - 300 3 303
Mr. Liu Lailin (note (iii)) B3R B 5 4 (W2 (i) - 300 - 300
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou (note (iii)  EBIM%E (AT (i) - 500 - 500

Non-executive directors FHUTES
Mr. Chen Xuejun (note (iii) PR % £ (A1 (i) 118 - - 118

Independent non-executive BAFHITES

directors
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin (note (i) Z £ R %% (A1 (i) 120 - - 120
Mr. Chau Chi Wai (note (i) (& 564 (M (i) 120 - - 120
Mr. Gao Guanjiang (note (iii)) BT 564 (At (i) 120 - - 120

478 1,100 3 1,581
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

17. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

17. EEFHESREBEME »)

(a) EBME(E)

Salaries,
housing,
other Contributions
allowances to defined
and benefits  contribution
Fees in kind plans Total
#e BB
HitZRR TR
ik BRIz HE PAEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FBT FET FBT FAT
For the year ended 31 HZ-Z-&

March 2014 ZA=t-HLEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lau Yau Bor (note (iv))  BIRIESEE(H i (v)) — 1,355 — 1,355
Mr. Lau Kin Tung (note (iv))  BIER %&£ (M5 (iv) 662 351 4 1,017
Madam Chan Hing Ming BRERZL

Tung (note (iv)) (B (iv) — 777 — 777
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan Ehellkces

(note (iii)) (i3t (i) 75 100 — 175
Mr. Liu Lailin (note (iii)) BIREG L (M2 (i) — 175 — 175
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou (note i) FISBIMSE 4 (42 (i) — 292 - 292
Non-executive directors  FHTES
Mr. Chen Xuejun (note (iii) ~ FREE % £ (A1 (i) 72 = — 72
Independent non- BUFHTES

executive directors
Mr. Choy Ping Sheung BRHEE

(note (iv)) (Hizv) 33 = — 33
Mr. Fung Tze Wa (note (iv)) BFEREHF(iv)) 52 — — 52
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu (note (iv)) EBEREMZ(v) 52 = — 52
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin FSREEM i (i)

(note (iii)) 70 — — 70
Mr. Chau Chi Wai (note (iii) &% &Mz (i) 70 — — 70
Mr. Gao Guanjiang BT R (H 7 (i)

(note (iii) 70 — — 70

1,156 3,050 4 4,210
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

17. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2014: Nil).

(i) During the year, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office (2014: Nil).

(iii)  These directors were appointed on 30 August
2013.

(iv)  These directors were resigned on 23 September
2013.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year included
three (2014: four) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above.
Emoluments payable to the remaining two
individuals (2014: one individual) during the year
are as follows:

(a)

(b)

17. EEFHESREBEME 2

EExmMe#)
Hizt :

i  FA- BEEEREXRERE
EAME 2 2 (—F—HF :
&) -

(i) FA- AEELENHESTE
ZARSIRENAREERIER
MARERIR 2B - SHIEREE
Bo@E(ZT—1F : &) -

(il ZEEERT—=FNR=+

BERT-
ivi, ZSEEERN_ZT—=%FN"A
—t+=HE&E-
hEEREFMAL

FRAEELERRTMALERE
=R(CE-F mR)EF-F
AR EX 2520 MARKR -
FARNESMBEAL(ZT N
Fi—BADZEMEMT

2015 2014
TE-AF ekl
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries, housing, other allowances # & * BE - HEMZ85 %

and benefits in kind B = 910 479

Contributions to defined TERAE AT 2 7R
contribution plans 18 13
928 492

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

17. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION 17. EEFHESREBEME »)
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) HEEERSHFMAL(E)
Emoluments of the two individuals (2014: one MEZ(ZZT—MF : —F) A2
individual) fell within the following bands: SERAUATER :

Number of individuals

AE
2014
—T N
Nil — HK$1,000,000 =2 1,000,00078 7T 2 1
No emolument was paid by the Group to AREFBEREZE SN AL TS T
the directors or any of the five highest paid ATEFFERFALZABME 0 A
individual as an inducement to join or upon % B & N AKNE B S /EA AR
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss SE% 2RI - SIEABER 2 @(E
of office (2014: Nil). (Z=2—lF : &|) -
The emoluments paid or payable to members of ENREMNSREEAS ZHMEE
senior management are included in the analysis FHR SRS 2 DT o

presented above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

18. W%~ MEKRZKE — FA5H

GROUP
Furniture,
Motor fixtures and
vehicles equipment Total
B #E
AE SET ] Fohy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET &
At 1 April 2013 R_E—=F1A—H
Cost BAR 673 3,555 4,228
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (448) (3,407) (3,855)
Net carrying amount BREFE 225 148 373
Year ended 31 March 2014 HE_ZT—NF
=RA=t—HBL%FE
Opening net carrying amount  EA¥BE E BB 225 148 373
Additions INE — 68 68
Depreciation e (56) (37) (93)
Disposals HE (169) (115) (284)
Closing net carrying amount  HI#REREFE — 64 64
At 31 March 2014 RZZ—F
=ZA=t+-H
Cost BAR - 552 552
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE - (488) (488)
Net carrying amount BREFE - 64 64
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-_Z—A1F
=RA=t—HBL%FE
Opening net carrying amount ~ EA¥BE E BB - 64 64
Additions INE - 52 52
Depreciation e - (20) (20)
Closing net carrying amount  HI#REREFE - 96 96
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—hH%F
=A=+—H
Cost BAR - 604 604
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE - (508) (508)
Net carrying amount BREFE - 96 96

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



19. INVESTMENT PROPERTY — GROUP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

19. BEWXE — KX£E

2015 2014
—ThF ek
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Fair value AEE
At 1 April REA—H 33,000 55,000
Disposals HE — (22,000)
At 31 March N=A=+—H 33,000 33,000

The Group's investment property at the reporting
dates is held under a long lease.

The fair value of investment property is a level 2
recurring fair value measurement. The fair values of
the Group's property as at 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2014 have been arrived at on market value
basis carried out by Roma, an independent valuer
who holds a recognised and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location
and category of the investment property being valued.

The valuation of the investment property as at 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2014 are determined
using direct comparison approach assuming sale of
the property in its existing states with the benefit
of vacant possession and by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market.

The investment property is leased to Eden (Swiss)
Health Management & Consultancy Company Limited
("Eden (Swiss)”), a company controlled by a director
of the Company, on a lease term of 2 years which
was detailed in note 32(b).

RBERH AREREMEREEH
WA -

BREMELZRAFERE _LREERF
BEHE -R-ZBE-—HF=A=+—HK
“E-NFE=A=1+—H XEEYE
Z R ECRBILAERRMES R
ERAR(FBAERAREHEEXER
WHA RO PR EY R 2 B I8 R
ETHEZER) RMEREET MG
BEZER -
R-ZE-—RF=A=+—HBEk=-ZT—@
RERLEE  BREROEERELTRE
HE  YRSERHEAMS LREBZA
BEUBHERZMETE -

# & Y ¥ M FEden (Swiss) Health

Management & Consultancy

Company Limited ([Eden (Swiss)]
HARAR —BEFZEG 2 QF)  HE
M - FFIHEERHE32(b) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries

20.

RMBLR S — AQH

(a) REIBLRTEZRE

2015 2014
“EFF [tk
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT F&T

Unlisted shares, at cost

FELETAD - A

82,388 82,380

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at
31 March 2015 are as follows:

Name of company

DEAER

Place of
incorporation and
kind of

legal entity

LB L 4 B
REERBER

RRABZHMBRARAN _-_T—HF=
A=t—BZ#FBWT :

Percentage of
issued capital

effectively
Particulars of issued  held by the Principal activities and
and paid up capital Company place of operation
LN
B¥REZ
ERTR ERITRE
BRRAFE otk TEEBREEHY

Jiwa Development Co. Ltd.

("JDL")

Jiwa International Limited

Tech-Medi Development
Limited
ERREREARAR

Jiwa Rintech Holdings
Limited

BVI, limited liability
company

RERLES
BRART

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE  ARAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&% ARAA

BVI, limited liability
company

EBEUES
BRAT

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

50,000 ordinary

100%* Investment holding,

shares of United Hong Kong
States dollar
("US$") 1 each

50,000 K EREE REZK  &A
(EZH(ETH )
TER

HK$1,000,000

100% Investment holding,

Hong Kong
1,000,000 57T REZRR  BE
HK$200,000 100% Trading of health care
products, Hong Kong
200,000 7T BERRER B8
10 ordinary shares of 100% Investment holding,
US$1 each Hong Kong
10REREE REER  BF
1R LR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — 20. RMIB AT 2R — AAF
COMPANY (Continued) (%)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MHBRIAZRE(E)

Percentage of

Place of issued capital

incorporation and effectively
kind of Particulars of issued  held by the Principal activities and
Name of company legal entity and paid up capital Company place of operation
RRH
BAREZ
AL L 3t B BRTR BRITRE
NRER REEERER BRRAFHE Ak FEEXBREXGH
Sino-Tech International Macau, limited MOP100,000 100% Trading of
(Macao Commercial lighility company pharmaceutical
Offshore) Limited products, Macau
HEERORMREEZRE) RF BRAR 100,000 £ 7T EEZm - B
BRAR
Jiwa Pharm & Chemicals Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$1,000,000 100% Investment holding,
Limited liability company Hong Kong
BEBEIBERAA % BRAA 1,000,000 57T REERR  BE
Rise Hill Development BVI, limited liability 1,000 ordinary shares 60% Not yet commence
Limited company of US$1 each business
AEBRUES 1,000 REREE mARGE R
BRRA 12T EBR
Base Affirm International BVI, limited liability 1,000 ordinary shares 100% Research and
Limited ("Base Affirm”) company of US$1 each development
RERUES 1,000 REREE RE R
AR 1ET2EBR
U-Home Group Development  BVI, limited liability 1 ordinary share of 100%* Investment holding,
Company Limited company US$1 Hong Kong
EBRAHS - 1IREE RERKR BB
BARRA (EA -3l
U-Home Enterprise Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$100 100% Investment holding,
Development Company liability company Hong Kong
Limited
B - BRAT 10087T REZK  &BA

—TMEZ—FHEFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — 20. AMB AR zEDm — &AAF
COMPANY (Continued) (%)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (a) RHBRAIZRE(E)
Percentage of
Place of issued capital
incorporation and effectively
kind of Particulars of issued  held by the Principal activities and
Name of company legal entity and paid up capital Company place of operation
RRH
BAREZ
AL L 3t B BRTR BRITRE
NRER REEERER BRRAFHE Ak FEEXBREXGH
U-Home Property Hong Kong, limited  HK$100 100% Investment holding,
Management and liability company Hong Kong
Consultancy Co. Limited
B BRAT 100/87T REZK  &A
Nanjing Tuoyu Property PRC, limited liability Renminbi (“RMB”) 100% Property consultancy
Management Co., Ltd company 2,000,000 and agency business,
(“Nanjing Tuoyu") PRC
ERAFERERBRAA mE - ARAA ARE(TARE]) WERBER RITHATRR
([ERATF]) 2,000,000 7T %
U-Home International BVI, limited liability 1,000 ordinary share 100%* Investment holding, BVI
Enterprises Limited* company of US$1
HBRLHES 1,000 REREE RERK RERLHE
ARAA 1% Bdk
U-Home Oceania Pty Ltd Australia, limited 100 ordinary share of 100% Property development,
("UHOL")* liability company Australian Dollar Australia
("AUD"N
BANE - BRAR 100REREE1RT FHERME - RAFE

(MRTL)) 2 EBk

& Issued capital held directly by the Company * BARNREERE ZEEITRA

# These subsidiaries were newly established # FiBRRREE T —hHF
during the year ended 31 March 2015 A=+ BLEFERFRILA

Ej o
(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries (b) FEM(FEAT) B 2 R KR

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are e () B B 2 A SRR R A

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B RERREREER - B

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/(to) CREAS )P 8 2 B 0IR 2 AR fH S

subsidiaries approximate to their fair values. NFEHEE

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ T —HAF=A=+—HIFE)

21.

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP 21. BEEE — A5H
Computer system
E B
HK$°000
FET
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-—E-—A5=ZA=1+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount BRYIIREDFE -
Additions NE 2,278
Amortisation for the year * REEZ " (886)
Closing net carrying amount B AR R EDFE 1,392
# Included in administrative expense # BERNTRERF
INVENTORIES — GROUP 22. 78 — X5£H
All inventories held at the end of the reporting periods RImERR - FIBEFEEYRREER °

are hearth care products.

“ET-UEE-AFFH ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZE T —HAF=A=+—HIFE)

23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — GROUP 23. EWERF — x&EE
The directors of the Company consider that the A FEUER R BT M B 2 B BAEAFR A2 -
fair values of accounts receivable are not materially WARRRESEREZEFRIA 2 AN EH
different from their carrying amounts because ERMETESEAEER -
these amounts have short maturity periods at their
inception.
The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 days AEE-RAEZEFEFREMHI0OAE
to 180 days (2014: 30 days to 180 days) to its trade 180H(ZE—M4&F : 30HE180H) 2
customers. Based on invoice date, ageing analysis of EEH c REBE ERRFIREBEEER
the Group's accounts receivable net of impairment HZBRER DT -

allowance is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-FF [k
HK$000 HK$'000

FET FEIT
Within 3 months =@AA 1,416 1,207
Over 3 months but less than 6 =B A EBDRISE R
months 2,651 8,387
Over 6 months NEAK E 692 —
4,659 9,594
Ageing analysis of overdue accounts receivable, net BHEKEER (R E ZRRE)REA
of considered impairment, based on past due date, at HARSERZREITAT ©

the end of the reporting period, is as follows.

2015 2014
TE-AF ekl
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

31 — 60 days 31— 60H 692 —

108 FEEEpRARAR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ—Z—AF=A=+—HILFE)

23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — GROUP 23. BRERF — A&E8 (&)
(Continued)
At each reporting date, the Group first assesses 73’\% WMER AEEFHEFEELTRE
whether objective evidence of impairment exists B 5 78 R B {E Bl 8 K 2 FEWR SR E B

individually for its accounts receivable that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively
for accounts receivable that are not individually
significant. The Group also assesses collectively
for accounts receivable with similar credit risk
characteristics for impairment. The impaired
receivables, if any, are determined based on the
credit history of its customers, such as financial
difficulties or default in payments, and current
market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment
provision is recognised if the amount is determined to
be irrecoverable. Based on impairment assessment,
no impairment loss was recognised for the Group's
accounts receivable for the year ended 31 March

2015 and 2014.

The Group did not hold any collateral as security
or other credit enhancements over the accounts
receivable, whether determined on an individual or
collective basis.

fﬁﬂfﬁ C AR R R EA 2 AR
BRIk FHRRE AEETRER

EREER BRI 2 YRR AE
BERHE - DREZERKER(NE) T
BERPZEER&(PIM G & EM K
l%’ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁm ERTORMERE - 8

S BWEE ST KE - RIZERE
%@ﬁiﬁfﬁ‘?&% © WJF?WEEW& CHE
—hAER-F-NOFE=A=1t—H

JtiFIETMKEIZJEM&HE R SRR
BEEE -

AEBEWENIZER K EREEEET 2
JEWBE R AT MEB R s EIR
FHE i o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE)

24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Non-current assets: ERBEE !

Group
rEE

2015

—E-HE

HK$000

FET

TET

2014
—E—F
HK$'000

24. BT ~ AT RIE R H B WK
|

Company
AATF
2015 2014

SE-RF e
LLCH  HK$'000

FET 8T

— Deposits (note(a)) — B& (Mt (a) 8,861 8,883 8,861 8,883
Current assets: REBEE :

— Deposits — & 82 93 — —
— Other receivables — H A EREIR

(note (b)) (H1aE (b)) 8,420 3,268 4,227 —

— Prepayments — TEIRIR 30 2 30 —

8,632 3,363 4,257 —

17,393 12,246 13,118 8,883

FEEBEZERABERRAR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note (a):

Note (b):

A tender deposit of RMB7,000,000 (equivalents
to approximately HK$8,861,000) was paid to
U-Home Group Limited (2014: HK$8,883,000),
a wholly owned subsidiary of an executive
director and the controlling shareholder of
the Company, by the Company on behalf of a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, Nanjing
Tuoyu, for bidding a contract for the provision
of consultancy and agency business to U-Home
Group Limited and its associates. Nanjing Tuoyu
succeeded in bidding the tender on 24 March
2014. On 19 May 2014, Nanjing Tuoyu entered
into a framework agreement with U-Home Group
Limited which is valid for a period of three years
commencing from the date when the Company
had obtained independent shareholders’ approval
on the framework agreement and expiring on
31 March 2017. The tender deposit will be
refunded within 7 business days after the expiry
or termination of the framework agreement.

As of 31 March 2015, a balance of HK$3,072,000
(2014: HK$3,072,000), derived from the disposal
of the Group's technical know-how during the
year ended 31 March 2013 as detailed in note
22 to the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2014, was included
in “other receivable”. The collectability of the
balance is subject to the satisfaction of the pre-
conditions set for phase 3 which is still under in
progress at the reporting date.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables

are considered a reasonable approximation of fair

value.

24. B > FNRARE M ERK

5 (%)
ftiE(a) :

Bz (b) -

RAARRERAEE 22 EHB A
AEREFRARNARRITESFR
ZERBRE2ERB ZHMBERRT
X¥EBERARAIHRERS
AR #7,000,000 JT(HHZERH
8,861,000 &L+ =T —PI4F :
8,883,000/ 7t ) * B IE M F
EEBBFR AT REBE QTR
HERERREREZEH - R
T—ME=A=-+MA  ERA
FRINEE - RZZE—NFHA
+TNB - mRETEFEEES
FRARGIIERGE - BAAR)
S8 AR R A BAIE R s 2 #E
EEARFAE-_ET—+LtFE=F8
=+—BLEAB=FHR - KEZ
ReSRIER B HE MK LR
7 EEEBRRE ©

HE—_ZT-—AF=A=+—A8"
FHEE-_Z-—HN&=A=+—H
IEFE AR B B R K+ W
22 THABHNEE=T—=
FZA=+—BHLEFEALE
EERMABIERERTER
3,072,000 jL(=Z — [0 F :
3,072,000 7T) * BEE[HAM
FEWURIE | o iR ERFE Y P] B IR
A ESTERSE B DAL
B = REBR PR N2 S R A o

ReMEMRBUHAZIREERESR
FEZEENE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH

25. EEHEBTERRESRERES

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ZEY

Group Company
REH RATE

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-hF mESuliEeg — T -5 ity

HK$°000
FET TET FET 8T

HK$'000 HK$7000 HK$'000

Cash and bank balances ¥4 NIR7T45 64 52,208 45,011 2,382 1,025

Time deposits

Less: Pledged bank J& - BEIFIRITER

EHFR 100,000 106,214 — —

deposits (K17t 26)
(note 26) (100,000) (106,214) — —

Cash and cash BEMIBSEEY
equivalents 52,208 45,011 2,382 1,025

Time deposits earned 0.5% (2014: 1.0% to 1.7%)
interest per annum. These deposits had been pledged
to secure the Group’s bank borrowings (note 26). The
directors of the Company considered that the fair
value of time deposits was not materially different
from its carrying amount.

As at 31 March 2015, included in cash and bank
balances of the Group are bank balances of
HK$3,428,000 (2014: HK$2,544,000) denominated in
RMB placed with the banks in the PRC. Under the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies
through the banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

EHEREBERAMBMZAMNER0L5% (ZF
—OF 1% E1.7%) - ZFEFRE TEM -
UERASE 2 RITER(HE26) AR FE
ERREHERZAFERERAELES
RER -

RZZE—RAF=ZA=+—H A£BEZR&
N ER1T 45177 8248 3,428,000 Bo(=ZT—M
F : 2,644,000/ 7T) ZIRITETFTIAAREE
PIME R TF IR R B 2 $R1T - RIEP B 2 SME
ERBKOIREE SERNEEERE A
EEEENERELEINE L ILER 2 RIT
AR HBRABINEY -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

26. BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP

26.

Current liabilities REBEE
Portion of term loans from banks due
for repayment within one year or

on demand

ZEB

AR —FREEZRTT

MITER — FEH
2015 2014
TE-RF s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
100,000 99,992

All bank borrowings are interest bearing and are
carried at amortised cost. All term loans which contain
a repayment on demand clause were classified as
current liability. The directors of the Company expect
that the term loans with repayment on demand clause
would be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

As at 31 March 2015, bank borrowings of
HK$100,000,000 (2014: HK$99,992,000) were secured
by the Group's bank deposits of HK$100,000,000
(2014: HK$106,214,000) (note 25).

None of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2015
and 31 March 2014 are guaranteed by the Company.

Effective interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings
at the reporting dates were as follows:

PRASRITERIIG R - LIRE AT
k- BERERERERRZAEERE
RESERRDAE - ARAEFRE
H > SIAREREZRGRZEREKH
RIBE KI5 E P85 2 FRRTE 5K A B {E
2o

R-_ZE—RE=ZA=+—8 17
3X100,000,0007 (= & — M F :
99,992,000/ 7T ) W AN EE 2 R 1777
5100,000,0007% T(= T — @ F :
106,214,000 7870 ) (Mt 7E 25) {E3E A -

AREEBR-_T-—RAF=A=+—HM=
E-ME=-A=1T—HZERGLIEH
RRBER o

AEBEZRTEFNBE A ZERN X
W

Interest rates
=
2015 2014

Bank borrowings in HK$ - Floating A& TEHEZ SB1TER— F &7
rate, to be matured in 2015 R TE—RHF(ZZT—
(2014: matured in 2015) F RS —HF)IH

1.5% above one 1.5% above one-

or two week(s) month HIBOR
HIBOR
—BAgmAE

BHBERT  —EAABEBRT

REFEMI1I5E REFEMILE

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.

CARBZRITERZIREE

5=
HEERNFERES -

z <

ka

=7
[N
N
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ—Z—AF=A=+—HILFE)

27. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE — GROUP 27. BB — ~KE
Ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows: JER BRI Z BREC DATIO R ¢

2015 2014
—ThF ik
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET
Within 3 months =EARA — 3,548
Over 3 months but within 6 months =& 8 LA 1B /NE A — 4,958
— 8,506
Accounts payable as of 31 March 2014 were non- RZE—MF=ZA=+—HZEMEX
interest bearing and had been settled during the year FEBEHYTHE BEREZE=ZF—H
ended 31 March 2015. FZA=Z+—HILFEHEEE -
28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEER
Group REE
The deferred tax recognised in the consolidated BRSSP BARR KPR - AF
statement of financial position and the movements EWHEZE(LWT :
during the year are as follows:
Investment  Withholding
property tax Total
REME BB et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FM"A—H 217 1,385 1,602
Disposal of a subsidiary BEE—ZXMBAA
(note 34) (Kiat34) — (1,385) (1,385)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April RZE-—FE=A=+—H
2014 M-_Z—mMFEMA—H 217 — 217
Charged to profit or loss (note 12) & ABz#(#1:t12) (217) — (217)
At 31 March 2015 RZE—AF=A=+—H — — —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 28. IEIER (&)

Group (Continued)

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$8,269,000 (2014: HK$10,297,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which losses
arose. Deferred tax assets of HK$1,364,000 (2014:
HK$1,699,000) have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Company

At 31 March 2015, no deferred tax has been provided
in the financial statements of the Company as
the Company did not have any material temporary
differences (2014: Nil).

REE(E)

AREBEEBELEZHATBEEIE
#$8,269,000/# Jo(= T — M % :
10,297,000 70 ) © A MR HA A fEER &=
EEE AR Z R RER G FIHEH -
HRZEERBIDRESHERSEZW
BRAAELX BXAEEHTIRAEET
EEEEANDAMEBEEEZERT &
M - BUERZSEEERREEHE
& 1,364,000 jo(= T — @ F -
1,699,000 7T) °

LN
R-E-—BEFZAZ+—0 BRE
AR B AEATELEE(—E—0
oM HUBE R BER A AR
B IR R AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE)

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
2015 2014
—B-nf e Sufc2
Number Number

of shares Amount of shares Amount

BB EE £8 RINEE g

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of FREE0.018TZ

HK$0.01 each TRk 10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid: BETRHE:

Ordinary shares of BREE0.018TZ

HK$0.01 each LiEk
At 1 April REA—H 1,640,000,000 16,400 1,625,000,000 16,250
Employee share option B 171#{E 8 BERE

exercised (Note) (Hi) - - 15,000,000 150
At 31 March R=RA=+—8H 1,640,000,000 16,400 1,640,000,000 16,400
Note: Htat -
On 25 April 2013, a consultant and certain employees of the RZE—=FNA-+HH AEE—FE
Group exercised their rights to convert a total of 15,000,000 FMEETERBA03MB T ZITEES RS H
share options into 15,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 15,000,000 17 #E A% # A 15,000,000 R & AR E@
each of the Company at exercise price of HK$0.34. H0.01 BTz AAR LA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR Y

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #{Z=—-%—

30. RESERVES

Group

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on pages 45 to 46 for reserves of the Group.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to the corporate reorganisation
of the Group during 2002 to 2003 (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the
holding company of the Group on 24 September
2003. The excess of the consolidated net
assets represented by the shares acquired
over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange under the
Reorganisation was transferred to contributed
surplus. The balance is available for distribution
to shareholders subject to the provision under
section 54 of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Asset revaluation reserve

The balance as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are
related to the revaluation of owner-occupied
property upon reclassification to investment
property during the year ended 31 March 2011.

Share premium

This represents the premium arising from the
issue of shares, net of placing expenses.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rule and
regulations, a subsidiary of the Company is
required to appropriate certain percentage of
its profits after tax to the respective statutory
reserve. Subject to certain restrictions as set
out in the relevant PRC regulation, the statutory
reserve may be used to make good previous
losses, if any, or to increase the paid-up capital
of the respective subsidiary, any may be used
for capital expenditure on staff welfare facilities,
as appropriate.

e el =)

30. &

AEH

EHEASE 2B F2HFE 45546
BZERAHREER -

(i) HARE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BERZZZT_FI =T =F2
REBOESH(EHA] > AR
ARZEE=FNAZTEKAR
SEZERAT o KRR ETS
RiFGEEFEBLEARARRIEE
HEBEITUMER Mz R 2 EBEZE
B UBERAKRRE o SRTIH

ERRE DK » A BRARENA
FE B4 IEIRTEFTR -
BEERGHE

RBE-F——#=A=+-HI
FENENHRARANEE =

E—RAFR_FT—NF=A=1+—
AvHEBEEHETERAMES
7 o

B EE

BTy EITROAESE 28 E (K
FEMX) °

AR

KEAEEPEARKMBIERE
B BRARB —KHERR R
—EAN MR REMERESBH
ETEREME o RIBEPEARAMBIM
R EN — LR - SEXE R B
ARARBEEENER(IE) =X
BB RS BN ERERAN - F
fa] FA M B 48 F AR e Y & AR B ST AR
RIEEIA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

30. RESERVES (continued) 30. &)
Company NN
Retained
Share profits/
Share  Contributed option  (Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses) Total
REER/
R EE BARR  BRERE  (RHER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT TAT AT AT
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=FMA-H 59,932 82,180 2,027 17,654 161,793
Special interim dividends BT RIRE(HE14)
paid (note 14) — — — (615,000) (615,000)
Issue of shares upon IR ETRG
exercise of share option 4,950 — — — 4,950
Exercise of share option ~ fT/EBERIE 2,027 — (2,027) — —
Profit for the year (note 13) FR&ERI(Ai13) - - - 479,956 479,956
At 31 March 2014 and R-E-ME==+-AK
1 April 2014 ~“E-MmEMmA-A 66,909 82,180 = (117,390) 31,699
Profit for the year ERER(1713)
(note 13) - - - 1,626 1,626
At 31 March 2015 RZB-ZF=R=1-H 66,909 82,180 = (115,764) 33,325
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—-Z—

31

. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION

The Company has a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted on 24 September
2003 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees
of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, and consultants and advisers to the
Group (subject to the eligibility requirements) to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company representing up to a maximum of 10% of
the shares in issue at the date of approval of the
Scheme. For the options granted to vest, persons
eligible to participate in this Scheme have to remain
employed during the vesting period. The exercise
price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the date of the grant and average
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant. The options vested are exercisable
within a period of five years from date of grant. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
share. The grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company
by way of consideration for the grant. The Scheme is
valid for a period 10 years and had been ended on 23
September 2013.

e el =)

31.

AR 7 & L1 7Y B T SR

ARBR—_FTF=FNLA-_THBER®H

—Iﬁﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁiﬂ(ﬁriﬂb - ARIN/N
AESERENBAGASEREE(R

%$;€lbﬁT{£ﬁA ﬂZE%)&$%
EeBERZERMBERZEABRE - A
REESEENEL TS AHE &7
D 10% 2 NR B - EERSH
AEZATERBBEANDATE &
BeBhEIeRE - BREZTEE
ABEMEE - BPRE G BB A
ZEHERROREZRRE BHAA 1l
EXRARBLZAFHRMER 2 &
E-CRBZERERNAELY EIHHfLEJr
hERTTRE - SNBBERTRHE A%
RE— BB - ARABAARAR
1B ERERBEREZNRE - &5
NERPRTF BE_FT—Z=FNA
—t=HE® -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE)

31. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 3. URMAERNETHRM =)
COMPENSATION (continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2014, no share REBEZE_ZE—NF=ZA=+—B2Z2FE
option was granted by the Company and all AZARRD B BEER T ERE  BIETEE
outstanding share options granted under the Scheme BREMERRITE M EERED BT
were exercised. Details of the movement in share o RARIRBFENBE _Z—NF
options granted by the Company pursuant to the “A=+—BFEARN 2 EREE
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2014 was HBWE
as follow:

Weighted
Exercised average
Date  Exercisable Balance at during Balance at exercise Exercise
ENS period 01/04/2013 the year  31/03/2014 price date
W-B-zf% R-B-mE

mA-A =B=1-H METRH
RiLAH TR &% FRBAK A iR iR
Number Number Number
of options of options of options HK$
BREZE  BREEE  BEERS AT

Employes/Consultant B8 /B

In aggregate (note) 4 (#izz) 121112012 1211172012 to
“E-CE O 1mpo
Rz “E3--F

T-R+ZH% 25/4/2013

“5tF “F-=F

T=A+-B  15000,000  (15,000,000) - 03¢ MA-THE

At31March 2014  R-E-BE=R
=+-8 15,000,000 (15,000,000) -

Note: These options were granted to several employees and et "%%E‘%H%’gﬁé:gif:i—'—_ﬂ +=
AT —2BRERETES -

a consultant on 12 November 2012.

All share-based employee compensation was settled FTA DARAD ST B B AR AR S -

in equity.

The weighted average share price at the date of RBE-_T-NF=A=+—AZFE
exercise for share options exercised during the WEATHERBBUE 2 1T1E B 8.2 hnEF 15
financial year ended 31 March 2014 was HK$0.63. RER0.638TT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

32. COMMITMENTS

(a)

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2015, the total future minimum
lease payments payable by the Group under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

32. E&iE

(a)

REREARE
R-ZZE-—RAF=A=+—RH £&&
BRETA®EREEMEERR
e & EEERIBATEMT

Group ArEEH
2015 2014
—E-h1F etk
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year —F R 223 230
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 89 219
312 449

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The lease runs for a period of
two years (2014: two years). None of the lease
includes contingent rentals.

Company

As at 31 March 2015, the Company does not
have any operating lease commitment (2014:
Nil).

AEBEREEEZHERRETY
X -ZEHEZFHAME(ZT
—mE: ME)RFEOMESRE

£AF
W-T-—BF=A=+—AFE -
AR R AT S TR (—
TPNE ) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

32. COMMITMENTS (cContinued)

(b)

(c)

Operating lease arrangements

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

32. AE®)

(b)

REHEERH

HIEF—ZT—HF=A=+—H '«
EEBRENAEREEHEERE
ZEBEFEALBNOT ¢

Group ArEEH
2015 2014
= — T IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year —FA 960 —
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 80 =
1,040 —

During the year, the Group leased out its
investment property to Eden (Swiss) under
operating lease arrangements which run for an
initial period of one month to two years (2014:
Nil).

Company

As at 31 March 2015, the Company does not
have any minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases (2014: Nil).

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2015, the Group and the
Company do not have significant capital
commitment (2014: Nil).

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(c)

FR AEERBEEHER
Eden (Swiss) i HE KR E W -
MTPEHE—EAAREME(ZE
—PUeE - ') o

EAAYT)

R-ZE-—RAF=A=1T—H &2
A E ARG EHE KR
ERE(ZT—F : £) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Excepted as disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:

(a) Related party transactions:

33.

BB RS

BUBHRERASBREEN

BATETATEARRS :

(a) BEBAEXRE :

2015
—E—EHF
HK$'000
FHET
Sales of goods: HE S m
— Jida Pharm (HK) Trading — BAREX(FE)EH
Co. Limited BRAR]
("Jida Pharm (HK)") ([TEREZX(EB)LD (i) -
Purchase of goods: EBEEY :
— Kunming Jida — ERABEARE
Pharmaceutical Company ARAE(TKJIP])
Limited (“KJP") (i) -
— Jida Pharm (HK) — BREX(FE) (ii) —
Agency service income RIEE R WA
— MMFREXZERABRAR — WM FREEER
BRAA (vii) 1,115
— BUFEEXARAQT] — BLFEEX
BRAF (vii) 1,072
— BMFMEEAR AT — BMNFREZE
BRAA (vii) 3,446
— T HHEFR A A — AT RME
BRAF] (vii) 2,532
Guarantee fees received: EREERER :
— Jida Pharm (HK) — BREX(FE) (ii) -
— KJP — BHERX (i) —
Rentals received: BRERES
— Jida Pharm (HK) — BREX(FE) (ii) -
— Eden (Swiss) — Eden (Swiss) (viii) 960
Rentals paid: ez :
— Mr. Lau Yau Bor — BB E (iif) —
— Jiwa Investment Limited — HREREBRAA (iv) —
— ERTFHHMESBRAF — M RTFEME (vii) 35

REE B

2014
—T—OF
HK$'000
FET

5,800

921
15,596

258
313

700

351
1,015

“E-MEE-AEFEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a) Related party transactions: (Continued)

33. BEMAEXRZ (#)

(a)

RMBERS : (&)

2015 2014
“EFF etk
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Consideration for disposal of a H&E—EHB AT 2
subsidiary: RIE :
— Goldvault Limited — Goldvault Limited
(“Goldvault”) (I Goldvault]) (v) - 512,000
Consideration for disposal of HE—BREYEZ
an investment property: RAE -
— Sunny Enterprise Limited — KB BR AR (vi) — 22,000

Notes: Hiat -

(i)  KJP was a former subsidiary of the Group. KJP (il EBHABAAASEZANER
became associates of the Group since 30 March Al BHBAR_ZT—%F=A
2011 and was disposed on 23 August 2013. “t+tHRRBRKAAEB ZHE N

A BERZE—Z=ZFNA=F=
HEE -

(i) Jida Pharm (HK) was a former associate of the () BAREXBB) AREEZH

Group and was disposed on 23 August 2013. gna BERZTE—=FNA
—t+=AHE-

(il A former director of the Company, Mr. Lau (i) AAREFBRRELEER=Z
Yau Bor, who resigned on 23 September 2013, —=FNAZTZ=HEE) M
leased certain properties to the Group. DYEBRTARER -

(iv) Jiwa Investment Limited, a former related (ivi HESFIREEERMRERLZLT
company, which is controlled by Mr. Lau Yau Bor (BHRZ=ZT—=FhLA=+=H
and Madam Chan Hing Ming, former directors of BHE)IEHl 2 BEREBR AT
the Company, both resigned on 23 September (REBZRIBEB AR AARE
2013, leased certain staff quarters and office BHEAAETEIGERHAE
premises to the Group. )

(v)  Goldvault, a former related company, which is (v)  Goldvault B2 & B ~ AT BB A

wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Lau Yau
Bor, Madam Chan Hing Ming and Mr. Lau King
Tung (collectively referred to as “Lau’s Family”),
former directors of the Company and all resigned
on 23 September 2013.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

A BARRPEEERRBEE
A % BR B BA A = R0 BIBUR Sk A
(BR=—Z-—=FNLA=-+=H
BHE)(AERIFERRKNDEE
YRR T -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(vi)  Sunny Enterprise Limited, a former related
company, which is a company wholly owned by
Goldvault.

(vil HMFREXEZFRERAA, BLFEEXEARAD
A, BMFMEXEER AR, BHFHMEBRAR]
and MRFHIMEAR A A are companies owned
and controlled by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, the director
of the Company.

(viii) Eden (Swiss) is a company controlled by Ms.
Zhou Wen Chuan, the director of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Group issued irrevocable corporate guarantee
in respect of a loan in a sum of HK$237 million
made by Nanyang Commercial Bank, Ltd to
KJP and its subsidiaries (collectively known as
“KJP Group"”), former associate companies of
the Group. The Group was entitled to receive
handling fee of HK$1,896,000 per annum (being
calculated as 0.8% of the total amount of the
guarantees). Such corporate guarantee was
released on 16 August 2013.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, no corporate
guarantee was issue by the Group or the
Company to banks with respect of bank
borrowings of the Group or KJP Group.

33. BBt F &)

(a)

BBAERS : (&)
Wit (%) :

(i) ARELEERARANEER A
BaE A 7 - @ Goldvault® & #
5o

(vii) SENFREXRBRERAF &
WMFZEEBRFR DA - BRHFH
EXARAR  BHFTHMESR
R A RN R T R B R A A
BMARREEZRABMEEREEGL
12l o

(viii) Eden (Swiss) AANA AIEH EX
M)

HE_ZT-—MNWF=A=+—HIF
EASERE R ERITAERAR
MALEZ A A AR RBEAS
EREMBAR(STEIKIPER])
R A %0237,000,0008 T2 ER
BETAHEARER - A5EH
7 YE 5 4F 1,896,000 8 T 2 F &
B(RBIEREZ08%ME) - %
PERKN-_ZE—=FNA+H
FRER o

R-ZB—RAFER-FT—HNF=H
=t—BARKEHAR A HELA
LB KIP LB Z RITERMIRTT
BRI A RHER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BB AR5 (%)

(Continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the year are as follows:

(c) FEEEBAEZME

FR -EEREMEEEEEKE
ZHEmT

2015 2014
= — T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Fee, salaries, other allowances and #%& * ¥ « EME K
benefits in kind B & 2,228 1,812
Discretionary bonus IS TEAL — 1,250
Rentals for directors =ik - 854

Contribution to defined TE R FRET 8 2 K

contribution plans 20 16
2,248 3,932

34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 12 March 2013, the Company through JDL, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement (the
“Disposal Agreement”) with Goldvault, a company
which is wholly owned by Lau’'s Family, to dispose
its entire 100% equity interests in a subsidiary
of the Group, namely JPL which held 49% direct
equity interest in KJP, for a cash consideration
of HK$512,000,000. KJP has four wholly owned
subsidiaries in the PRC or Hong Kong, namely Wuxi
Jida Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Kunming Jida
Pharmaceutical Distribution Company Ltd., YJB and
Jida Pharm (HK). The disposal was completed on 23
August 2013.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

34.

HE—BHE QT

R-ZE—=ZF=ZA+=-8 ' AARGE
BARNEZ2EKBARJDL)EEKR
W& & %A 22 a)Goldvault 5] 3 A 1§
HEEHHE(HERR]  KEEER
AEBEEZHBRAREERZE(RER
BARFEEA9% BERE) 22 E100%
B4 - 3£ R {EA512,000,000/8 T °
ERBARPEAREMEXBTEESR
EBARESR AR - EABEAER
HEARAR  EMBELEYREAR
REIRERBEBB)ESERAQF
EZNEEENBAR - HEFBER-_Z
—=FNA-+=BHELZK °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 34. HE—BHE AR (&)

The carrying amounts of the net assets of JPL at the JPLAREERB =TS —=FN\A=+=
disposal date of 23 August 2013 were as follows: BMIREFEESRER ¢
Notes HK$’000
Kzt FET

Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEEY 3,135

Tax recoverable AR B A IR 863

Amounts due from associates FE MBS 5 X R FRIR 1,971

Amount due from related companies & U BB X R SR IE 12,775

Other payables ot e 5RIE (7)

Dividend payables RS (12,312)

Deferred tax liabilities RLERIAE E 28 (1,385)

Fair value of put option RoHEERN A TE (64,060)

Carrying value of interests in associates B4 A al iz I IR EB(E 470,951

Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 411,931

Gain on disposal of JPL HERESE Y W 100,069

Total st 512,000

Satisfied by: XN

Cash consideration ReNE 40,090

Non-cash consideration FIRERE

— Consideration settled by offsetting — DAESHE R BB 2 (B
with special dividends (i) 439,910
— Estimated amount for PRC capital — RFEEREET AEERE
gain tax (ii) 32,000
512,000

Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEFHEAZFHRSRAFE

Cash consideration ReNE 40,090

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of  FrHERS MIREZEEY (3,135)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents IR&KIREEEWRFEBA 36,955

Gain on disposal of JPL HERESE 2 s 100,069

Notes: Kiet -

(i) Part of the consideration amounted to HK$439,910,000 ) BFEALEBREEXZHHRE
(note 14) in connection with the disposal of JPL was 439,910,000 o (M 5£14) LA FE 1 F
settled by the special interim dividends payable to 2| X = % (Goldvault 2 f% 3 K 75 & %4
Lau’'s Family, which is the shareholder of Goldvault, F WA 2 KRl EAR B ELT -
the acquirer of JPL.

(ii) The hold-back amount of HK$32,000,000 (note 12) (ii) =R 4 %8 32,000,000 T (Y aE12) 48
represented an estimated tax payable in connection ENMEEREZERPRBENBIR
with the disposal of JPL and statutory filings provided HEEFREEN 2B -

for the PRC withholding tax.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

35. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 35, MIREENEBEBIERE
AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The following table shows the carrying amounts and TRARNEI TR T BEE L
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities as BEFIREBERAFEE -

defined in note 3.7.

Group Company
AEHE N

2015 2014 2015 2014
—EhF mElapilcEl — T F 4 Emleaaguicd
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FET FET

Financial assets BKERE
Loans and receivables: BN ERFIE :
— Accounts receivable — FEUEE 4,659 9,594 — —
— Deposits and other — & kHEREK
receivables IR 14,291 9,171 13,088 8,883
— Amounts due from  — FEULKHIEB R RIZRIA
subsidiaries — — 62,194 61,636
— Pledged bank —BEEIFRITER
deposits 100,000 106,214 — —
— Cash and cash —RERBEEED
equivalents 52,208 45,011 2,382 1,025
171,158 169,990 77,664 71,544
Financial liabilities BEEE
Financial liabilities REHRANGTEZ
measured at amortised B E(E :
costs:
— Bank borrowings — RITEXK 100,000 99,992 — —
— Accounts payable — EERX — 8,506 — —
— Accrued expenses — EETERN
and other payables HEvREMAzIE 10,595 3,129 5,445 1,600
— Amounts due to — BB ARRIE
subsidiaries — — 104,912 104,256

110,595 111,627 110,357 105,856

128 FHEEEERAERAE U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

35.

36.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

No financial instruments held by the Group as of 31
March 2014 and 2015 are measured at fair value.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include accounts receivable and payable, deposits and
other receivables, amounts due from/to subsidiaries,
bank balances and cash, bank borrowings, accrued
expenses and other payables. Due to their short
term nature, the carrying value of these financial
instruments approximates fair value.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course
of operations. The financial risks include market risk
(including currency risk and interest risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the
Group’'s headquarters, in close co-operation with
the directors of the Company. Overall objectives
in managing financial risks focus on securing the
Group's short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long-
term financial investments are managed to generate
lasting returns with acceptable risk levels.

The finance department works under the financial
risk management policies approved by the directors
of the Company. It identifies ways to access financial
markets and monitors the Group’s financial risk
exposures. Regular reports are provided to the
directors of the Company.

35.

36.

MREENEBIERE®)

AEER-_T-—HNFR-_T-—RF=A
=t BEABERAFEFEZESR
THo

AELAFEAENEBRTABRERE
IR - REME T RKHIE - B
SRENMBARNRIE . RITEHREER
& RITER EABRAMETEMNRK
B ERZEeRMTARRE - HIRE
EBEROATE-

BREREE

AEEREARELEBETERANBET
EmMEHMERARERTSARERE
E¥ERENERR)  EERR R
BHETER °

MERAREENANSE AR - L8R
ARRESREAE -  BEVBRR
EREGZEEBREEEY ZEm™
LR REAEEZPEHRSR
B AEEEANERIZEBRKTFAERE
REMBIRE  UEEFADR -

B HRAAREE IS M HEARE
BEE T BEEeRTiERES
AEERBER Y T BAAATE
SRR RS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk

(i)

FEEEZERERAA

Transactions in foreign currencies and
the Group’s risk management policies

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group's exposures to currency risk arise
from its sales and purchases, which are
primarily denominated in RMB and USS$.
These are not the functional currencies
of the group entities to which these
transactions relate. As HK$ is pegged
to US$, the Group does not have any
significant exposure to currency risk
resulting from transactions conducted
in US$. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposure regularly and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

To mitigate the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk, cash flows in foreign
currencies are monitored. The policies to
manage foreign currency risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.

U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

e el i)

MR RER #)
(a) SMERR
(i) HEXERFIEBZABRE
ERE
EEmEBREARNERESE
B T A2 A FAE sk k5K

ReEmELREEH 2 AR -
AEEEHS 2 EBERKA
ETEUAR®ENETAE
ZBHINEE - EERIWIH
BRNERG 2 NEEE R
ZWEEER - ARNBITEE
TLENA - BUREE Y EE Y
EREAETETTR 5 M3
HZERRR - NEBEFEH
maf AN R Y EEE
REFEREHEBRINER

8 o
ZoN

A& B RN 2 IR B A
B EINE R o BIRIMNER
BeBERRBERFHASE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ T —HAF=A=+—HIFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(ii)

Summary of exposure

Foreign currency denominated financial
assets and liabilities, translated into HK$ at
the closing rates, are as follows:

36. IKEKRER &)

(a) SPEmEBE(AE)

(ii)

ARAEEHE
WONEHBEZ B EERE
B HR W T B 2 A 55 8 T 0
T

2015 2014
—2-IF —Z-|mF
RMB Us$ RMB USs$
AR in ARE xT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Accounts receivable FEUEE 4,516 - 805 8,387
Deposits, and other Re - REMER
receivables FB 8,861 - 8,883 =
Pledge bank deposits ~ BEERITER - - 106,214 —
Cash and cash Re kR EEY
equivalents 2,898 306 3 150
Accounts payable JE1T R SR - - — (8,506)
Other payables HioERFUA (2,162) - = —
Net exposure arising ERANBEER
from recognised BEZ R
financial assets and EFE
liabilities 14,113 306 116,215 31

Except for the tender deposits of
HK$8,861,000 (2014: HK$8,883,000) which
is denominated in RMB, the Company did
not have any significant exposure to foreign
currencies at the reporting date.

BREAARKFENRZIRZ
$8,861,000/ 8 L(=F — Y
4 :8,883,000/87L) ' AR
AIRRERA S EAMEXN
HNES L[ AR SR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a)

FREEZA

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the
sensitivity of the Group’'s and the
Company's profit after tax for the year
and equity in regards to a 2% (2014:
2%) appreciation in the group entities’
functional currencies against RMB. The
percentages are the rates used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

Sensitivity analysis of the Group’'s and
the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date has
been determined based on the assumed
percentage changes in foreign currency
exchange rates taking place at the
beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the year.

e el i)

R RER #)

(a)

SN RLBR (F)
(iii) SBEE T

TREAAEBEARRZ
FABRTE RN RESE A
SEEBNGKEBLARK
FE2% (ZF—HF : 2%)
ZHRE - WEBDL A
A EBEIEA S 2 RINE
RBREEFAZLER W AE
BEHIINEERAEESH 2
REFG -

RBER AEERARQF
P SN R B 2 SRR
rHREINEE R EE T 5
PO B B R 1) 3 AR I 0B
FRBKTEMETE -

2015 2014
“E-AF sk
RMB RMB
N AR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Group REH
Profit for the year and retained A% Fl| Rz (R 28 3% 7
profits (236) (1,941)
Company AAF]
Profit for the year and retained & A% H| R (R 28 % 7
profits (177) (178)

REB AR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 & —ZT—AF=A=+—HIFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

A 2% depreciation in the group entities’
functional currencies against RMB would
have the same magnitude on the Group's
and the Company’s profit for the year and
equity but of opposite effect.

This is the same method and assumption
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis
included in the financial statements of the
year ended 31 March 2014.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary
during the year depending on the volume
of overseas transactions. Nevertheless,
the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Group’s and the
Company's exposure to foreign currency
risk.

36. IKEKRER &)

(a) SPEmEBE(AE)

(iii) BBEE S H ()
AEBERZMEEERA
RERE2% & SHAE
B K R AR B 2 F R N R
RaBREFEEER 2 FE -

EFERBRARUER
—E-mF=A=+—H1
FEVBREMBPRED
AR AEAER o

SN T K [ R M E B
SR ZHEMNE - R - £
DT R R A RRA S E
¥ 2 SNE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

(i)

(ii)

FREBZRERAR

Exposures to interest rate risk and the
Group’s risk management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The
Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from bank borrowings. The borrowings
bearing floating rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group reviews whether bank
borrowings bearing floating rates should be
drawn from time to time with reference to
the trend of changes in interest rates. The
interest rates and repayment terms of bank
borrowings and cash and bank balances of
the Group are disclosed in notes 26 and 25
respectively. The directors of the Company
monitor interest rate change exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise. The
policies to management interest rate risk
have been consistently applied by the
Group and are considered to be effective.

U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

36. KEKRER &)

(b) RZ=REE

(i) FUFE G EE @2 ERE
EHHE

MERBREMBETAZRYF
EXRERERAT SN XL
FEMHR KB 2R - NE
B2 M R E R E ERERTT
B e UZE A R K B E F
KA RZEESAEEEAD
RIE R S RMEN XA R &
NHEFRRR

(i) BBEDH

AEBZ2ENEEHBET
BF iR 57 FE T HR B L) B FI) =&
SATBZIRITER - AEEZ
RITER 2 M X REEBGK
AR & RIRITET D RIR
Y5k 26 %253 & - AR A
LEEERNEZEFHER -
WTEEERRETERLEHRE
AA =R g o F 2= = b g 12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 S o B

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ T —HAF=A=+—HIFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table illustrates the
sensitivity of the Group's profit for the
year and equity to a possible change in
interest rates of +/-1% (2014:+/-1%), with
effect from the beginning of the year.
The calculations are based on the Group's
financial assets and liabilities held at the
reporting date. All other variables are held

constant.

Change in

interest
rate

ks 3

ER AR +%
1%

Borrowings in HK$

36. IKEKRER &)

(b) FIEmEME(E)
(iii) SBEDH (&)

TRELEFME - NEE
25 R N B R A R Al
BEHIR +/-1% (ZT— M4 :
+HR) BB CBEE A
REEDUNASERESH
REZUWBEERBERE
B FTAEMAERRER

N5

= °

2015 2014
“8-if “E-mE
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/  Increase/
DECERIROEAGERIN  Change in+ (Decrease)  (Decrease)
in profit for in retained interest in profit for i retained
the year profits rate the year profits
EREH  REEN ErgH  RREH
g/ (H5) #h/(89) EEES TRV VAT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr AT AT
(835) (835) +1% (835) (835)
835 835 -1% 835 835

The assumed changes in interest rates are
considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions
and represents management’'s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest
rate over the period until the next annual
reporting date. The sensitivity analysis
included in the financial statements of
the year ended 31 March 2014 has been
prepared on the same basis.

MNEZBRREDHLER
BTMRAERESEEMA
BEHBEZES URERE
HEET -—EFERSEA L
HRMEZ SEAIEES 2
- BE_T-HE=A
=t—RLEFEZHBHRER
Pr#z RRE DT I ER A
RIEERS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c) Credit risk

(i)

(ii)

FEEEZERERAA

Summary of exposure

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument
would fail to discharge its obligation under
the terms of the financial instrument and
cause a financial loss to the Group.

The credit risk mainly arises from granting
credit to customers in the ordinary course
of operations and from its investing
activities.

Risk management objective and policies

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk
by rigorously selecting the counterparties.
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents
is mitigated as cash is deposited in
banks of high credit rating. Credit risk on
receivables is minimised as the Group
performs ongoing evaluation on the
financial condition of its debtors and tightly
monitors the ageing of its receivable
balances. Follow up action is taken in
case of overdue balances. In addition,
management reviews the recoverability
of receivables individually and collectively
at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

As disclosed in note 7, a significant portion
of Group's sales are made to several
major customers. These customers made
continuous settlements with the Group and
therefore, management believes that the
credit risk as at 31 March 2015 and 2014
on the amounts due was minimal.

U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(i)

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR Y

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 HiZ —ZE—HAF=A=1+—HILFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

The credit policies have been consistently
applied and are considered to be effective
in limiting the Group’'s exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or other financial
assets. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk
in respect of settlement of accrued expenses
and other payables as well as its financing
obligations, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group's objective is to
maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring
scheduled debt servicing payments for long-
term financial liabilities as well as forecast cash
inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time
bands, on a day to day and week to week
basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day
projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a 90-
day and 180-day lookout period are identified
monthly. Net cash requirements are compared
to available borrowing facilities in order to
determine headroom or any shortfalls. This
analysis shows if available borrowing facilities
are expected to be sufficient over the lookout
period.

36. IKEKRER &)

(c)

(d)
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nBE SRR EANEEREETT
HUAR SR HEMMBEES 28
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AEBZERAEFEEZRDE
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BEEERRPUFABZER
H - UREABEEBRSRAR
R UGREEEEEHRBES
TE - RBESHTRRTRKERE
R BREZARREH  UARZ
=+HEGFEN - BABENTH
—EBN+HERH ERE#HR
PESTE - B FEFRETH
AEERMBEELE - UETEEHK
EAZERE - oM REAE A

EERERARRERRE °

—TMEZ—FHEFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

137



138

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 March 2015 #& —Z—

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group maintains cash and short-term bank
deposits to meet its liquidity requirements for 30
day periods at a minimum. Funding for longer-
term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to sell longer-term financial
assets.

The liquidity policies have been consistently
applied by the Group and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its non-derivative
financial liabilities as at 31 March 2015 and
2014. When the creditor has a choice of when
the liability is settled, the liability is included on
the basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement
of the liability is in instalments, each instalment
is allocated to the earliest period in which the
Group is committed to pay.

Specifically, for term-loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’'s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the Group can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
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(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

36.

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash

flows of the financial liabilities.

At 31 March 2015

MEERER #)

(d) RBESEBR(E)

WA IIREM I AE 2 RAEIRIA

EREFH -

R-ZE—HRFE=H=+—H

Contractual
On Less than undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year cash flow amount
BHREE
REX PR-F HenE HREE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Group FrEE
Non-derivatives FEiTE
Bank borrowings RITER 100,000 - 100,000 100,000
Accrued expenses and BT ERREMEMNFE
other payables 10,595 - 10,595 10,595
110,595 - 110,595 110,595
Contractual
On Less than undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year cash flow amount
BHREE
REX PR-F HenE HREE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Company LN
Amounts due to [ERHIBARFUB
subsidiaries 104,912 - 104,912 104,912
Accrued expenses and  [EFTERREMEMNFHE
other payables 5,445 - 5,445 5,445
110,357 - 110,357 110,357
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(For the year ended 31 March 20156 &2 —ZT—RAF=A=1+—HIFE)

(Continued)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MKERER &)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) RBESEMGE)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZB-WFE=ZA=+—H
Contractual
On Less than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year cash flow amount
BRIRIR
REK PR—F RenE FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT BT 78T FBT
Group FrEE
Non-derivatives T
Bank borrowings BITER — 99,992 99,992 99,992
Accounts payable FEFTERSR = 8,506 8,506 8,506
Accrued expenses and BB K EMEMN A
other payables 3,129 — 3,129 3,129
3,129 108,498 111,627 111,627
Contractual
On Less than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year cash flow amount
BHAREER
RE%K PR—F Rene EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT BT FBT FET
Company VN
Amounts due to FERTH B A Rl FUE
subsidiaries 104,256 — 104,256 104,256
Accrued expenses and B EAREMENZEA
other payables 1,600 — 1,600 1,600
105,856 — 105,856 105,856

FEEFEFARAR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(For the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ T —HAF=A=+—HIFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of term loans with repayment on
demand clause based on the agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not
consider that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such
term loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

Maturity analysis of term loans subject to
a repayment on demand clause based on
scheduled repayments is as follows:

36. IKEKRER &)

(d)

RBESER(E)

TRBMEEREREEGERZE
HIERIRE R & i E BT E
RERZ BB DT - Z2BEHE
ERBHFRFEZFENK - &
ZRAKE MBI - EERA
RITAAA BET TR A B B E KA
REE - EFHE ZREETHER

5 AR P & 5K 195 = P B0 TRUE 2 3K A 1
&8 -

Total
undiscounted
cash flows demand
AUERS
REAE RER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Group PN
31 March 2015 —E-A5=ZA=+-H 100,000 100,000 -
31 March 2014 —T-MFE=A=1+—H 101,613 — 101,613

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a bank loan
with outstanding amount of HK$100,000,000
which contains a repayment on demand clause.
Other than this loan, none of the Group's
bank borrowing as at 31 March 2015 and 2014
contains a repayment on demand clause.

BI=F-AF=A=t—H &
EEZIRBERERBERZAEEER
E42%8 5 100,000,000 7T © Bt
200 BE-T-—HER-T N

A=+—B  AEBLMEE
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

PROCEDURES

The Group's objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
going concern in order to provide returns for the
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital and to support the Group’s stability
and growth.

The Group monitors its capital structure and make
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristic of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.
Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level.

As the Group is in a net cash position at the reporting
dates of 2015 and 2014, the gearing ratio has not
been presented.

As disclosed in note 30(iv), a subsidiary of the Group
is required by the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC to contribute and maintain non-distributable
statutory reserve. Except for the above, there is no
other externally imposed capital requirement of the
Group and the Company for the financial years ended
31 March 2015 and 2014.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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B 75 R MY =

(For the year ended 31 March 20156 B EZ=-E—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 38. MEHESEIA

PERIOD

On 9 April 2015, UHOL, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into the sale and
purchases agreement with Alphington Developments
Pty Ltd, a company incorporated in Australia with
limited liability (“Vendor”), pursuant to which the
Vendor agreed to sell and UHOL agreed to acquire
the land use right over a land (the “Land’) at a
consideration of AUD33,480,000 (inclusive of GST)
(equivalent to approximately HK$197,900,000) (the
“Acquisition”). The Land is located in Part Alphington
Paper Mill, 626 Heidelberg Road, Alphington, Victoria
3078, Australia, which is a residential district situated
at the suburb of Melbourne, Victoria, Australia. Details
of the transaction has been set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 April 2015.

On 18 June 2015, an ordinary resolution was passed
at the special general meeting in relation to the
Acquisition.

RZZE—RAFMHANLE  AEBZME
% 2 & K B 2 5] UHOL &2 Alphington
Developments Pty Ltd([& /5 |+ —
KRN EMK L cBREEAT)ET
VEEWE B BARBELEEM
UHOLE E 4 — & - (3l 1)
Z i fE A4 - X (B /33,480,000
BT(BEEEmRBHEIEERLD
197,900,000 B T)([WHEEE]) - %+
HAZ 5 Part Alphington Paper Mill, 626
Heidelberg Road, Alphington, Victoria
3078, Australia @ 72 & RN 4% F|
DERBBALBZEER - KHFEH
NAATEBERA-ZT—REMA++H
B A o

RZZ-—AFRATNAR BREFRIAR

GLEBE-HEETBRER  ABREBAK
BEE-
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEHBERE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
2% —2——F —2-=% —T-F —E-f1f
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000 RIS
FET FET FET FET FiEx
Revenue &
Continuing operations FECE %% 175,309 203,787 35,648 35,079 9,336
Discontinued operations BRIHEE 547,297 = = = -
722,606 203,787 35,648 35,079 9,336
Profit/lloss) from operation meRF/ (B8)
Continuing operations FRLEEN 22,225 37,921 16,396 95,785 3,103
Discontinued operations B HEREHR 77,936 = = — -
100,161 37,921 16,396 95,785 3,103
Finance costs BEMA
Continuing operations RS ST (1,075) (3,404) (4,435) (1,401) (351)
Discontinued operations BRIHEE R (3,973) = = = -
(5,048) (3,404) (4,435) (1,401) (351)
Share of results of associates Bl ENRZE
Continuing operations FRLEENE (94) 40,737 35,352 27,135 -
Discontinued operations B HEREK = = = = -
(94) 40,737 35,352 27,135 -
Profit before taxation BT AL A
Continuing operations BELEXK 21,056 75,254 47,313 121,619 2,752
Discontinued operations BRIHEEER 73,963 = = = -
95,019 75,254 47,313 121,519 2,752
Income tax expenses FERR%
Continuing operations FRLE RN (1,839) (4,636) (5,559) (32,302) (769)
Discontinued operations B HEREK (12,177) = = = -
(14,016) (4,636) (5,559) (32,302) (769)
Profit for the year FERET
Continuing operations SEEERK 19,217 70,618 41,754 89,217 1,983
Discontinued operations BRIHEEER 61,786 = = = -
81,003 70,618 41,754 89,217 1,983
Attributable to AT AT
Equity holders ERBFAA 255,663 70,620 41,754 89,219 1,981
Non-controlling interest FEERER 19,205 2) - 2) 2
274,868 70,618 41,754 89,217 1,983
Assets and liabilities and BEERAER
non-controlling interest RS
Total assets BED(E 905,098 932,953 872,449 207,420 208,909
Total liabilities Elirckd (297,748) (328,370) (256,512) (112,206) (111,670)
Non-controlling interest iR 4 6 6 8 6
607,354 604,589 615,943 95,222 97,245

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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